
 

 

AGENDA 
 

BOARD MEETING 
HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

February 28, 2022 – 9 a.m. 
Hybrid Meeting 

ROBERT W. SAUNDERS, SR. PUBLIC LIBRARY 
1505 N. NEBRASKA AVENUE, TAMPA, FL 33602 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER  

 
II. APPEARANCE BY JOHN COURIS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, TAMPA GENERAL HOSPITAL (TGH)  

a. TGH Rezoning Application 
 

III. FHSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH AUDITOR’S REPORT 
a. Lijah Lokenauth, Vice President of Finance, TGH  

 
IV. FY 2021 HCHA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDIT REPORT 

a. Sam Lazzara and Jon Stein, Rivero, Gordimer, & Company, P.A 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
a. November 15, 2021 Quarterly HCHA Meeting  

 
VI. REPORT FROM AUTHORITY LEGAL COUNSEL 

a. Director and Officer Insurance Renewal  
b. Status Update - Grants/Community Funding Subcommittee Meeting   

 
VII. REPORT FROM THE TREASURER 

a. First Quarter FY 22 Treasurer’s Report  
 

VIII. REPORT FROM THE ADMINISTRATOR  
a. First Quarter FY 22 MBE Spend Report 
b. First Quarter FY 22  Indigent Care Report  

 
IX. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
X. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 
XI. NEXT BOARD MEETING DATE – May 23, 2022 – Location TBD 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

Tampa General 
Hospital Presentation 

 
John Couris,  

Chief Executive Officer,  
Tampa General Hospital 
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LOOKING AHEAD
Capital Improvements
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A B E T T E R  TO M OR R OW  F O R  TAM PA B AY AN D  B E Y O N D

INVESTING IN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

BAYSHORE 
PAVILION 

EXPANSION

CENTRAL 
ENERGY PLANT

CORPORATE 
CENTER 

PARKING GARAGE

FREESTANDING 
EMERGENCY 
DEPARTMENT

STRATEGIC 
PROJECTS

CANCER CARE 
EXPANSION 

AT BRANDON 
HEALTHPLEX

6 North ICU

Burn ICU

Bayshore Expansion

Off-site SPD

Main OR Renovations

On-Campus Renovations

Lobby

4-Story Central 
Energy Plant 

8-Story, 2,000-space 
parking structure

15,000-square-foot 
freestanding 

emergency department 

HCC 
Building Purchase

Ambulatory 
Expansion Plan

Expansion of 
Radiation Oncology 

and Medical Oncology 
services, Surgical 

Oncology clinic space, 
support services and 

Cellular Therapy
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ANTICIPATED ECONOMIC IMPACT

5,952
NEW JOBS

$967 MILLION
TOTAL ECONOMIC IMPACT

(Tampa Bay Region)

O F  S T R AT E G I C  C AP I TAL I M PR O VEM E N TS
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BAYSHORE PAVILION 
VERTICAL EXPANSION
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TGH Bayshore Pavi l ion – Vert ical  Expansion
B a ys h o r e  P a v i l i on  e x p a ns i on  t o  a c c o m m o dat e  f u t u r e  g r ow th  i n  S u r g e r y a n d  I n p a t i en t  Vo l u m e
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TGH Primary Service Area Demographics
E x p e c ted  P o p u l a t i on  G r ow th :  

I n  t h e  n e x t  1 0  ye a r s ,  p o p u l a t i on  i s  e x p e c t ed  t o  i n c r ea se :  P e d i a t r i cs  a t  1 % a n n u a l l y;  Ad u l t s  a t  1 . 7 % a n n u a l l y

CAGR: Compounded Annual Growth Rate 

Source: Truven
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Basel ine Adult  Inpat ient  Bed Need Project ions
C u r r e n t l y T G H ,  n e e d s  1 , 0 1 2  Ad u l t b e d s  w i tho ut  o b s e r va t i o n .  I n  t h e  f u t u r e  t h e  b e d  n e e d  i s  b e tw een  1 , 1 4 0  a n d  

1 , 2 8 0  d e p e n d i n g  o n  t h e  g r ow th  r a t e  ( f u t ur e  g r ow th  p r o j ec t i on s  a s s u m e R e h a b  o f f - s i t e ) .
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Basel ine Operat ing Room Need Project ions

*Project OR need is calculated using 65% of 70% utilization factor based 
on the mix of inpatient and outpatients
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Key Project  Takeaways

• Purely vertical expansion, no impact to linear park or waterfront

• Will not add any parking to TGH Davis Islands campus

• Traffic study shows minimal impact to DI traffic, mainly addt’l shuttle trips

• Construction will be managed with ‘just in time’ material deliveries

• Height roughly the same as current West Pavilion, no significant view impacts

• Enhances front view of campus

• No additional noise generated from the new building

• Addition of 100 beds and 12 ORs to serve the community

O F  S T R AT E G I C  C AP I TAL I M PR O VEM E N TS
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QUESTIONS?

Air transport services provided by Metro Aviation, Inc.



O T H E R  H O S P I T A L S  P R A C T I C E  M E D I C I N E .



James J. Kennedy, Ill 
Shareholder 
(813) 229-4379 
jjkennedy@carltonfields.com 

Jennie Tarr, Esq. 
Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP 
101 E. Kennedy Blvd., Ste. 2800 
Tampa, FL 33602 

February 23, 2022 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Corporate Center Three at International Plaza 
4221 W. Boy Scout Boulevard I Suite 1000 

Tampa, Florida 33607-5780 

P.O. Box 3239 I Tampa, Florida 33601-3239 

813.223.7000 I fax 813.229.4133 
www.carltonfields.com 

Atlanta 
Florham Park 

Hartford 
Los Angeles 

Miami 
New York 

Orlando 
Tallahassee 

Tampa 
Washington, DC 

West Palm Beach 

Re: Hillsborough County Hospital Authority (HCHA)/Florida Health Sciences Center, 
Inc. (FHSC) 

Dear Jennie, 

In our capacity as legal counsel to Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. (FHSC), we have 
confirmed that the Hillsborough County Hospital Authority (HCHA) has no direct liability on the 
outstanding Bonds. As you recall, HCHA entered into a long term lease with FHSC in 1997 (the 
"Lease"). As part of the Lease, FHSC assumed the obligations to pay the existing bonds, which 
was done in the early 2000s. Since that time, all new bonds have been in the name of FHSC. The 
only two members of the FHSC Obligated Group are FHSC d/b/a Tampa General Hospital, and 
its controlled affiliate, Tampa General Medical Group, Inc. While there is a Leasehold Mortgage 
on the Facilities under the Lease, the only two remaining bondholders that are secured by the 
Leasehold Mortgage are PNC Bank and TD Bank. If you have any other questions, please direct 
them to me and Sandy Maclennan, Esq., who has served as bond counsel for the bond issuances 
by FHSC. 

Cc: Alexandra ("Sandy") Maclennan, Esq. 
Squire Patton Boggs 
One Tampa City Center 
201 N. Franklin St., Ste. 2100 
Tampa, FL 33602 

Thank you, 

~f~ 
James J. Kennedy, Ill 

Carlton Fields, P.A. 
128604530 .1 Carlton Fields, P.A. practices law in California through Carlton Fields, LLP. 



STATE of FLORIDA 
COUNTY of ______________. 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of 
physical present or online notarization, this ____ day of ____,  
202_,  by  

_______________ _ / ___________________. 
Printed Name  Signature 

_______________________________ 
Signature and Stamp of Notary Public 

Personally known or produced identification. 

Type of identification _______________________ 

STATE of FLORIDA 
COUNTY of ______________. 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of 
physical present or online notarization, this ____ day of ____,  
202_,  by  

________________  / ___________________. 
Printed Name  Signature 

_______________________________ 
Signature and Stamp of Notary Public 

Personally known or produced identification. 

Type of identification _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
   

    
    

 

   
 

  
  

 

   
   

  
  Both owner and agent must sign and have their names notarized.

The undersign authorizes the above agent(s) t agree to any conditions necessary to effectuate this application.

on this matter (if applicable).
The undersigned authorizes the above agent(s) to represent me (us) and act as my (our) agent(s) at any public hearing

AGENT’S NAME:________________________________________________________________________________
application(s)" (if applicable)
as his(their) agent(s) solely to execute any application(s) or other documentation necessary to affect such
described application and that the undersigned has(have) appointed and does(do) appoint the agent(s) stated herein
"That this affidavit has been executed to induce the City of Tampa, Florida, to consider and act on the above

THERE IS A THIRD PARTY SUBMITTAL OF A PETITION FOR REVIEW.
THE PROPERTY UPON REQUEST FROM THE CITY. I ALSO CONSENT TO THE POSTING OF A SIGN ON MY PROPERTY IF
UNDERGOING REVIEW FOR THE ABOVE REFERENCED REQUEST. IF MY PROPERTY IS GATED, I WILL PROVIDE ACCESS TO
AND COMPLETE AND HEREBY AUTHORIZE AND ALLOW REPRESENTATIVES OF THE CITY TO ACCESS THE PROPERTY
I, THE UNDERSIGNED APPLICANT/AGENT, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ALL INFORMATION ON THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE

“That this property constitutes the subject of an application for EZONING

Name(s):______________________________________________________________

“That I am (we are) the owner(s) and record title holder(s) of the property noted herein” Property Owner’s

FOLIO NUMBER(S): ________________________________________________________________________________

PROPERTY (LOCATION) ADDRESS(ES): __________________________________________________________________

APPLICATION/RECORD NUMBER: ___________________________________________________________________

Multiple authorizations may be necessary if there is more than one property owner.

5of 8 REZONING APPLICATION Rev. 1.31.2021  E.C.

REZ 21-XX

1 TAMPA GENERAL CIR, TAMPA

196285-0050

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

T. Truett Gardner and Gardner Brewer Martinez-Monfort, P.A.



 
 

FHSC 
Financial Statements 

with 
Auditor’s Report 

 
Lijah Lokenauth,  

Vice President of Finance, 
Tampa General Hospital 

 



KPMG LLP 
Suite 1700 
100 North Tampa Street 
Tampa. FL 33602-5145 

December 16, 2021 

Management and the Audit Committee 
Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. 
Tampa, Florida 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Florida Health Sciences 
Center, Inc. (the "Center") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Center's internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Center's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Center's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation ofa control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, the 
Audit Committee, others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

compnnv IlrrlltuU by qucraureo. 
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KPMG LLP 
Suite 1700 
100 North Tampa Street 
Tampa, FL 33602-5145 

Independent Auditors' Report 

The Board of Directors 
Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. and Subsidiaries: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. 
and subsidiaries (the Center), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2021 and 
2020, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors'Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 
2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net assets, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

December 16, 2021 

the 
companv limited by uoara.ucc. 



FLORIDA HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

September 30, 2021 and 2020 

Assets 2021 2020 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 235,018,216 311,842,636 
Short-term investments 50,360,144 5,175,408 
Current portion of assets limited as to use 27,505,124 4,665,065 
Patient accounts receivable 237,898,962 180,846,775 
Inventories 38,525,778 37,448,011 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 64,823,562 62,524,781 

Total current assets 654,131,786 602,502,676 

Assets lirruted as to use, less current portion 1,577,127,493 937,620,018 
Property and equipment, net 582,540,750 536,101,350 
Right-of-use operating assets 69,783,155 66,402,380 
Investments in joint ventures 20,832,085 22,012,780 
Other assets 16,258,686 19,527,904 

Total assets $ 2,920,673,955 2,184,167,108 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 301,847,812 288,571,933 
Deferred revenue 93,344,613 131,034,137 
Current installments of long-term debt 8,824,781 8,534,246 
Current installment of operating lease obligations 14,682,374 13,273,307 
Current installment of finance lease obligations 933,474 1,076,485 
Estimated third-party payor settlements 94,686,638 59,958,409 

Total current liabilities 514,319,692 502,448,517 

Long-term debt, excluding current installments 879,978,624 340,868,431 
Obligations under operating lease, excluding current installments 42,052,248 39,153,510 
Obligations under finance lease, excluding current installments 2,859,953 3,373,185 
Other liabilities 108,275,664 107,237,834 

Total liabilities 1,547,486,181 993,081,477 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 1,338,054,031 1,160,733,436 
With donor restrictions 35,133,743 30,352,195 

Total net assets 1,373,187,774 1,191,085,631 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,920,673,955 2,184,167,108 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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FLORIDA HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 

Years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 

Revenues, gains, and other support: 
Net patient service revenue $ 1,634,557,080 1,423,257,682 
Disproportionate share distributions 5,819,666 6,486,338 
Other revenue 200,210,633 161,057,349 

Total revenues, gains, and other support 1,840,587,379 1,590,801,369 

Expenses: 
Salaries and benefits 771,934,950 704,032,589 
Medical supplies 455,390,558 353,440,617 
Other 236,446,381 223,965,807 
Purchased services 202,496,895 172,881,603 
Depreciation and amortization 65,483,836 66,143,722 
Interest 28,388,243 11,760,463 

Total expenses 1,760,140,863 1,532,224,801 

Operating income 80,446,516 58,576,568 

Nonoperating gains: 
Investment return, net 92,025,485 65,007,150 
Gain from pension termination 5,872,988 
Other 3,703,261 957,917 

Total nonoperating gains, net 95,728,746 71,838,055 

Revenues, gains, and other support over expenses $ 176,175,262 130,414,623 

3 (Continued) 



FLORIDA HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 

Years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 

Net assets without donor restrictions: 
Revenues, gains, and other support over expenses $ 176,175,262 130,414,623 
Net assets released from restrictions used for property and 

equipment and other property transfers 1,145,333 3,644,270 
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost 1,960,116 

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 177 ,320,595 136,019,009 

Net assets with donor restrictions: 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Used for property and equipment and other property transfers (1,145,333) (3,644,270) 
Used for operations (31,625,894) (30,240,582) 

Contributions 32,282,235 33,382,575 
Increase in beneficial interest in net assets of Tampa General 

Hospital Foundation 5,270,540 11,015,732 

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 4,781,548 10,513,455 

Increase in net assets 182,102,143 146,532,464 

Net assets, beginning of year 1,191,085,631 1,044,553,167 

Net assets, end of year $ 1,373,187,774 1,191,085,631 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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FLORIDA HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Increase in net assets $ 182,102,143 146,532,464 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 65,483,836 66,143,722 
Amortization of debt issue costs 656,357 161,805 
Amortization of bond premiums (3,416,771 ) (661,355) 
Non-cash lease expense 16,819,963 16,191,223 
Restricted contributions (1,442,861 ) (3,651,625) 
Unrealized gains, net (62,433,268) (43,737,037) 
Realized gains, net (11,156,246) (8,087,369) 
Gain on joint ventures (2,219,305) (1,301,812) 
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost (1,959,116) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Patient accounts receivable, net (57,052,187) (10,767,865) 
Inventories (1,077,767) (9,351,688) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 228,846 31,450,240 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 11,793,646 20,723,050 
Deferred revenue (38,851,651) 131,034,137 
Estimated third-party payor settlements 34,728,229 13,451,087 
Other liabilities (12,485,035) 27,582,904 

Net cash provided by operating activities 121,677,929 373,752,765 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchases of property and equipment (109,022,026) (73,856,512) 
Purchases of assets limited as to use (1,514,648,181) (563,283,767) 
Proceeds from sales of assets limited as to use 948,877,691 541,799,311 
Purchases of short-term investments, net (45,184,736) (37,911) 
Investment in joint venture 3,400,000 751,500 
Purchases of other assets, net (83,381) (91,602) 

Net cash used in investing activities (716,660,633) (94,718,981) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from restricted contributions 1,442,861 3,651,625 
Payments of debt issue costs (5,083,303) 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 612,483,539 
Payments on long-term debt and finance lease obligations (67,697,284) (9,133,355) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 541,145,813 (5,481,730) 

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (53,836,891 ) 273,552,054 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 337,226,712 63,674,658 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 283,389,821 337,226,712 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 235,018,216 311,842,636 
Cash included in assets limited as to use, less current portion 48,371,605 25,384,076 

$ 283,389,821 337,226,712 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
Cash paid for interest $ 28,388,243 11,760,463 
Accounts payable for property and equipment purchases 8,451,143 5,806,783 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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FLORIDA HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

September 30,2021 and 2020 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Organization and Basis of Presentation 

Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Center), located in the Tampa Bay region of 
Florida, is a not-for-profit entity incorporated during 1997 to meet the healthcare needs of the citizens of 
Hillsborough County and the state of Florida. The Center operates Tampa General Hospital 
(the Hospital), where it administers a teaching program for interns and residents. On October 1, 1997, 
control of the operations and all assets and liabilities of the Hospital were transferred from Hillsborough 
County Hospital Authority (the Authority), a governmental entity, to the Center. The change in control 
was accomplished through the execution of an agreement between the Authority and the Center, as 
well as changes granted by the Florida Legislature that provided for the privatization of the Hospital. 
Tampa General Hospital Foundation (the Foundation) is a related not-for-profit organization, which 
supports the Center. 

In connection with the change in control, the Center entered into a 49-year lease agreement, which can 
be extended for an additional 49 years, with the Authority to lease the land and buildings on the Davis 
Islands campus, together with all improvements located thereon, for a nominal annual rental amount of 
$10. For financial reporting purposes, the fair value of the leased assets of approximately $86,571,000 
as of October 1, 1997 was reported as an increase in net assets with restrictions for the year ended 
September 30, 1998, as the leased assets can only be utilized in accordance with the specifications of 
the lease agreement. During the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, net assets of 
approximately $488,991 and $502,278, respectively, were released from restriction, relating to the 
annual depreciation expense associated with the leased assets. 

The Center operates a number of wholly own subsidiaries which include, Florida Health Sciences 
Center, Ltd. (the Captive) which provides professional and general liability coverage to the Center, 
Tampa General Medical Group, Inc. (TGMG, Inc.), which operates a network of physician practices, 
FHSC Real Property Holding Company, LLC (FHSC Real Estate), TGH Architecture & Engineering, 
LLC (TGH Architecture), for the purpose of holding architectural licenses, TGHHOC Inc. (dba House of 
Coffee Tampa), for the purpose of operating a Starbucks Restaurant, TGH Ambulatory Services 
Company, Inc. (TGH Ambulatory), which established wholly owned subsidiaries as follows: TGH 
Staffing, LLC; The Surgery Center at TGH Brandon Healthplex, LLC (ASC); and TGH Brandon 
Healthplex Pharmacy, LLC. Pursuant to a Subscription Agreement in 2017, the ASC sold a 1% 
membership interest to an affiliated physician. In 2019, that membership interest was repurchased by 
the Center pursuant to a planned restructuring and a 45% membership interest in the ASC was 
subsequently purchased by a surgical investor group. In August 2020, an additional 1 % membership 
interest was sold to an affiliated physician. 

In August 2021, the Center incorporated TGH Innoventures, LLC, TGH Incentive Vehicle, LLC, TGH 
Innoventures Blocker, LLC and FSH Carried Interest, LLC. to further pursue medical innovations and 
healthcare technologies. In February 2020, the Center entered into an operating agreement for 51 % of 
newly formed Tampa Rehabilitation Hospital, LLC (TGH Rehab) for the purpose of developing a 
rehabilitation hospital. 

6 (Continued) 



FLORIDA HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

September 30, 2021 and 2020 

The consolidated financial statements of the Center include the operations of all entities controlled, 
either directly or indirectly, by the Center, which include the Hospital, the Captive, TGMG, Inc., FHSC 
Real Estate, TGH Architecture, TGHHOC Inc., TGH Ambulatory, TGH Rehab, TGH Innoventures, LLC, 
TGH Incentive Vehicle, LLC, TGH Innoventures Blocker, LLC, FSH Carried Interest, LLC and the 
Center's beneficial interest in the net assets of the Foundation. Investments in entities where the 
Center holds a noncontrolling interest are recorded under the equity method of accounting. All 
significant intercompany transactions among those entities have been eliminated during consolidation. 
The consolidated financial statements for the Center have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

(b) Mission Statement 

The Hospital is committed to providing area residents with excellent and compassionate health care 
ranging from the simplest to the most complex medical services. 

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Center considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, 
when purchased, to be cash equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents that are managed as part of the Center's investments are reported within 
assets limited as to use on the consolidated balance sheets. Cash equivalents are excluded from cash 
in the consolidated statements of cash flows as these funds are not used for operating needs. 

(d) Inventories 

Inventories consist principally of medical and surgical supplies, drugs, and medicines, and are valued 
at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. 

(e) Assets Limited as to Use 

Assets limited as to use primarily include assets held by independent bank trustees on behalf of the 
Center under terms of bond indentures and self-insurance trust agreements, over which the Center 
retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes. Amounts required to 
meet current liabilities have been reclassified to current assets in the consolidated balance sheets. 

Investment return includes realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest income, 
and dividends and are included in revenues, gains, and other support over expenses in the 
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, unless the income or loss is 
restricted by donor or law. Investment income and net gains and losses restricted by donor stipulations 
are reported as net assets with donor restrictions. 

(f) Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment, transferred from the Authority on October 1, 1997, was recorded at fair value 
as determined by an independent appraisal. Other property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at 
historical cost at the date of acquisition or fair value at the date of donation. Maintenance and repairs 
are charged to expense as incurred, and improvements are capitalized. Depreciation expense is 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets ranging 
from 3 to 40 years. Equipment under lease arrangements is amortized using the straight-line method 

7 (Continued) 



FLORIDA HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
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over the shorter period of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the equipment. Such 
amortization is included in depreciation and amortization expense in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. Interest cost on borrowed funds during the construction period is capitalized as a 
component of the cost of the assets. 

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment with explicit restrictions that specify how 
the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived 
assets, are reported as restricted support and are recorded at fair value at the time the gift is made. 
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, the 
Center reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are 
placed in service. 

(g) Debt Issue Costs 

Debt issuance costs of approximately $8,207,000 and $3,284,000 are included as a deduction from the 
carrying amount of long-term debt at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These amounts 
include costs capitalized in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 bonds, 2012A bonds and 
2013 and 2015 bank loans. There is also approximately $160,000 of debt issuance costs included 
which was incurred prior to September 30, 2020, related to the October 2020 debt issuance. Debt 
issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest method. Amortization of approximately 
$656,000 and $162,000 for the years ended September 30,2021 and 2020, respectively, is included as 
a component of interest expense. The debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are 
approximately $6,348,000 and $2,081,000 as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

(h) Bond Premiums 

Bond premiums are being amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the related debt. 
Amortization of bond premiums of approximately $3,417,000 and $661,000 for the years ended 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, is included as a component of interest expense. Bond 
premiums of approximately $21,771,000 and $7,330,000 are included with the related debt in the 
consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

(i) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
Management regularly evaluates whether events or changes in circumstances have occurred that 
could indicate impairment in the value of long-lived assets. There were no impairment losses recorded 
during the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020. If there is an indication that the carrying amount 
of an asset is not recoverable, the Center estimates the projected undiscounted cash flows, from the 
use and eventual disposition of the asset, excluding interest, to determine whether an impairment loss 
exists. The impairment loss, if any, would be determined by comparing the historical carrying value of 
the asset to its estimated fair value. 

In addition to consideration of impairment due to the events or changes in circumstances described 
above, management regularly evaluates the remaining lives of its long-lived assets. If estimates are 
revised, the carrying value of affected assets is depreciated or amortized over the remaining lives. 
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(j) Estimated Professional Liability, Workers' Compensation, and Employee Benefits Cost 

The Center is self-insured for professional liability, workers' compensation, and employee health 
benefits. The provision for professional liability, workers' compensation, and employee health benefit 
claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not 
reported, based on evaluation of pending claims and past experience. 

(k) Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions are those whose use by the Center have been limited by donors to a 
specific period or purpose. The majority of net assets with donor restrictions are maintained pursuant to 
the lease agreement with the Authority, whereby the Center must continue to provide specific 
patient-care related services, continue to serve as a teaching hospital, and continue to provide certain 
levels of indigent care throughout the 49-year lease term. The remainder of net assets with donor 
restrictions are to be maintained by the Center in perpetuity, the income from which is expendable to 
support the Center's operations. 

(I) Beneficial Interest in Tampa General Hospital Foundation 

The Center recognizes its beneficial interest in the net assets of the Foundation. This interest is 
adjusted to reflect its share of change in the Foundation's net assets. The Foundation complies with the 
provisions of the Florida Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (FUPMIFA). 

(m) Nonoperating Gains and Losses and Revenues, Gains, and Other Support over Expenses 

Activities deemed by the Center to be a provision of healthcare services are reported as revenues, 
gains and other support, and expenses. Other activities that are peripheral to providing healthcare 
services are reported as nonoperating gains and losses, net. 

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include revenues, gains, and 
other support over expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions that are excluded from 
revenues, gains, and other support over expenses are consistent with industry practice. Other changes 
in net assets without donor restrictions consist primarily of pension liability adjustments and 
contributions of long-lived assets, if any. 

(n) Disproportionate Share Distributions 

The State of Florida Agency for Health Care Administration distributes low-income pool and 
disproportionate share payments to the Center based on its indigent care service level. The Center's 
policy is to recognize these distributions as revenue when amounts are due, and collection is 
reasonably assured. The receipt of any additional distributions is contingent upon the continued 
support by the Florida State Legislature. 

(0) Charity Care 

The Center provides care to patients who meet certain criteria by reference to established policy 
threshold. Because the Center does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity 
care, these amounts are not reported as revenue. Partial payments to which the Center is entitled from 
Medicaid, public assistance, and other programs on behalf of patients that meet the Center's charity 
care criteria are reported as net patient service revenue. 
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(p) Income Taxes 

The Center, except for TGHHOC Inc. and the companies established as wholly owned subsidiaries 
under TGH Ambulatory, has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service as a tax-exempt 
organization described in Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, income earned 
in the furtherance of the Center's tax-exempt purpose is exempt from federal and state income taxes. 
Taxes are not levied in the Cayman Islands for income, profit, capital, or capital gains generated by the 
Captive. 

TGHHOC, Inc., TGH Innoventures Blocker, LLC and the companies established as wholly owned 
subsidiaries under TGH Ambulatory are for-profit corporations and are subject to federal and state 
income taxes. Taxes are recognized as necessary in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. Associated tax accounting impacts are not material to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

The Center applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification 
(ASC) Topic 740, Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions 
and provides guidance when tax positions are recognized in an entity's financial statements and how 
the value of these positions are determined. 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require management to evaluate tax positions taken by 
the Center and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the Center has taken an uncertain position that 
more likely than not would not be sustainable upon examination by the Internal Revenue Service. 
Management has analyzed the tax positions taken by the Center, and has concluded that as of 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that 
would require recognition of a liability (or asset) or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 

(q) Leases 

As lessee, the Center is obligated under operating leases primarily for real estate, medical equipment, 
and other support equipment. The Center's finance leases are primarily for real estate and medical 
equipment. The Center determines if an arrangement is a lease at the inception of a contract and 
determines the lease term by considering the noncancelable term plus any renewal or cancellation 
options that are reasonably certain to be exercised. Real estate leases typically have initial terms of 
three to ten years. Medical and other equipment leases typically have initial lease terms of three to five 
years. Real estate leases may include one or more options to renew, with renewals that generally 
extend the lease term from three to five years. Medical and other equipment leases generally include 
options to extend on a month-to-month or annual basis. In general, the Center does not consider 
renewal options to be reasonably likely to be exercised; therefore, renewal options are not recognized 
as part of right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease obligations. 

The Center initially records the related ROU assets and lease obligations at commencement at the 
present value of lease payments. The ROU asset is also adjusted to include lease payments made at 
or before the lease commencement date, plus initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received. 
The Center has elected to use the Treasury Yield for the related lease term to discount the lease 
payments. The Center has also elected to not recognize ROU assets and lease obligations for leases 
with an initial term of 12 months or less ("short-term leases") for all asset classes. 
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For operating leases, the lease liability is subsequently measured at the present value of the unpaid 
lease payments. For finance leases, the lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective-interest method. 

For operating leases, ROU assets are amortized throughout the lease term at the carrying amount of 
the lease liability, plus initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued) lease payments, less the 
unamortized balance of lease incentives received. Lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term and is included in other expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets. For finance leases, the ROU asset is amortized using the straight-line method to 
the earlier of the end of its useful life or the end of the lease term unless the lease transfers ownership 
of the underlying asset. In those cases, the ROU asset is amortized over the useful life of the 
underlying asset. Amortization expense for finance leases is included within depreciation and 
amortization in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 

As a lessor, the Center leases building space to affiliates and third-party operators. The Center 
determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception of a contract and determines the lease term by 
considering the noncancelable term plus any renewal or cancellation options that are reasonably 
certain to be exercised. 

As both lessee and lessor, the Center has elected the practical expedient to account for lease and 
non-lease components, such as common area maintenance fees, as a single lease component and is 
applying this expedient to real estate leases. 

(r) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

(s) Going Concern 

In accordance with Accounting Standards Updated (ASU) 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties about 

an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern, management has assessed the Center's ability to 
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued and 
determined that no further disclosure is required. 

(t) Net Patient Services Revenue 

The Center's revenues are derived from contracts with patients in which the performance obligation is 
to provide healthcare services to patients and are reported at the amount expected to be received in 
exchange for providing patient care. Consideration for these amounts are due from patients, third-party 
payors (such as managed care, Medicare, Medicaid) and others, and they include variable 
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments. The Center identifies performance obligations based 
on the nature of the services provided and recognizes the revenue as the performance obligations are 
satisfied. Generally, the Center bills patients and third-party payors several days after the services are 
performed or shortly after discharge. Inpatient acute care services satisfied over time, generally from 
admission to time of discharge, are recognized based on actual charges incurred in relation to the total 
expected (or actual) charges, which depicts the transfer of healthcare services over the duration of the 
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performance obligation. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time, which is 
generally relating to patients receiving outpatient services, is recognized when services are provided, 
and the Center does not believe the patient requires additional services. 

Because unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration 
of less than one year, the Center has elected to apply the optional exemption provided by ASU 
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, ASC Topic 606-10-50-14 and, therefore, is not 
required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations 
that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially 
unsatisfied performance obligations referred to above are primarily related to inpatient acute care 
services at the end of the recognition period. The performance obligations are generally satisfied after 
discharge which typically occurs within days or weeks of the end of the reporting period. The 
transaction price is determined based on gross charges for services provided, reduced by price 
concessions related to third party contractual arrangements, discounts provided to patients, and other 
implicit price concessions. 

The Center determines the estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts based on contractual 
agreements, the Center's charity care policy, as well as historical experience and other collection 
indicators. The Center accounts for the contracts within each portfolio as a collective group, rather than 
individual contracts. The portfolios consist of major payor classes for inpatient and outpatient revenue. 
The financial statement effects of using this practical expedient are not materially different from an 
individual contract approach. 

Generally, patients covered by third-party payors are responsible for related deductibles and 
coinsurance, which is referred to as the patient portion. Subsequent adjustments to the transaction 
price that are determined to be the result of an adverse change in patient or payor's ability to pay, for 
example, bankruptcy, are recognized as bad debt expense. Bad debt expense is included within other 
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. Bad debt expense 
for the years ended September 30, 2021, and 2020, was not considered material to the Center. 
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Laws and regulations governing Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject 
to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a possibility that recorded estimates associated with these 
programs will change. The Center recognizes net patient service revenue associated with services 
provided to patients who have third-party (managed care, Medicare, Medicaid, other) payor coverage 
on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For under-insured and uninsured patients 
who do not qualify for charity care, the Center recognizes revenue on the basis of individualized 
arrangements based on financial need and medical necessity. These arrangements do not take into 
account age, gender, race, social or immigrant status, sexual orientation or religious affiliation. On the 
basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Center's uninsured patients will be unable or 
unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the Center records a significant implicit price 
concession related to uninsured patients in the period the services are provided. Patient service 
revenue, net of contractual allowances, discounts, and implicit price concessions recognized for the 
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 from the major payor sources are as follows: 

2021 2020 

Managed care $ 721,981,882 643,133,199 
Medicare 610,558,102 515,376,422 
Medicaid 234,897,413 222,452,510 
Other 59,666,591 37,310,002 
Self-pay 7,453,092 4,985,549 

$ 1,634,557,080 1,423,257,682 

(2) Net Patient Service Revenue 

The Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Center at amounts 
different from its established rates. The most significant third-party payors to the Center are the Medicare 
and Medicaid programs, which account for approximately 52% of the Center's net patient service revenue 
for the years ended September 30, 2021 and September 30, 2020. A summary of the payment 
arrangements with major third-party payors is as follows: 

(a) Medicare 

Inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid on a prospectively 
determined rate per discharge based on the Medicare Severity Diagnosis-related Group (MSDRG) 
assigned to the patient. Commercial insurers, which operate as Medicare Advantage Plans, generally 
follow the traditional Medicare MSDRG payment methodology. Defined organ acquisition and graduate 
medical education costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are paid based on a cost reimbursement 
methodology, subject to certain limits and regulatory guidelines. The majority of outpatient services are 
paid on prospectively determined rates per occurrence based on the ambulatory payment classification 
(APC) assigned to the service provided. The Center also receives a disproportionate share payment 
from Medicare included in its MSDRG payment, based on its level of Medicaid patient volume and 
low-income Medicare beneficiaries. 
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The Center receives a final settlement for cost reimbursable and pass-through items after submission 
of its annual cost reports and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. A Medicare final 
settlement has been determined for all years up to and including 2008. Differences between estimated 
provisions for cost report settlements and final settlement amounts are reflected as net patient services 
revenue in the fiscal year the cost reports are considered finalized. Changes in such estimates related 
to prior cost reporting periods resulted in an increase in net patient services revenue of.approximately 
$1,047,000 and $1,013,000 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and September 30, 2020, 
respectively. 

(b) Medicaid 

In 2014, the Florida Legislature mandated that the majority of Florida Medicaid beneficiaries be 
transitioned to Statewide Medicaid Managed Care (SMMC). Because certain populations are carved 
out of SMMC, the Center has seen approximately three-fourths of its Medicaid reimbursement 
transition to these plans. The Center continued to be paid for outpatient services on a cost-based rate 
that reimburses per occasion of service through June 30,2017. SMMC utilized the same payment 
methodology as traditional Medicaid for reimbursement of inpatient and transitioned to the same 
methodology for outpatient services. Effective July 1,2017 the Agency for Health Care Administration 
(AHCA) implemented a new outpatient prospective payment methodology utilizing Enhanced 
Ambulatory Payment Groups (EAPGs), which are an outpatient visit-based patient classification 
available for all outpatient services and settings. 

(3) Charity Care 
The Center provides necessary medical care regardless of the patient's ability to pay for services under its 
charity care policy. Qualification for charity care is based on the current Federal Poverty Income Guidelines 
(FPG). Under-insured and uninsured patients, who do not meet charity guidelines, may qualify for 
discounted care. Charity or discount consideration is available only after all third-party reimbursement and 
government sources have been exhausted. Excessive assets or medical expenses may be factored as part 
of the charity or discount evaluation. The Center ensures that financial counseling communication is clear, 
concise, and considerate of the patient and family members. In addition, regulatory changes that may have 
the potential to alter charity classifications are monitored and incorporated into the policy, as necessary. 

The Center maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care. These records include the 
amount of charges foregone for services and supplies furnished under its charity care policy. The following 
measures the level of charity care and other community benefits, as defined, at estimated costs for the 
years ended September 30,2021 and 2020: 

Traditional charity care 
Unreimbursed Medicaid and Medicaid HMO 
Unreimbursed Hillsborough County Health Plan 

$ 

2021 2020 

63,453,000 63,831,000 
101,725,000 84,309,000 
24,855,000 21,304,000 

190,033,000 169,444,000 

11 % 11 % 

$ ======= 
As a percentage of operating expenses 
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(4) Concentration of Credit Risk of Net Accounts Receivable 
The Center grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured 
under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors as of 
September 30 is as follows: 

2021 

Managed care 
Medicare 
Medicaid 
Other 

74 % 
12 
2 

12 

100 % 

2020 

69 % 
16 
3 

12 

100 % 

The credit risk in other payors is limited due to the large number of insurance companies that provide 
payments for services. 

(5) Assets Limited as to Use and Short-Term Investments 
Assets limited as to use as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, at fair value, are as follows: 

2021 

Internally designated for capital improvements and employee 
health benefits: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Equities securities: 

Domestic stocks 
Global stocks 

Fixed income securities: 
Government obligations 
Corporate bonds 

Equity index fund 

Total internally designated for capital improvements 
and employee health benefits 

Beneficial interest in Tampa General Hospital Foundation 

$ 60,708,526 

54,806,491 
58,149,637 

316,332,892 
254,028,710 
288,246,658 

1,032,272,914 

24,583,397 

15 

2020 

34,077,564 

132,925,571 
48,014,642 

253,545,001 
247,535,891 
136,997,729 

853,096,398 

19,136,326 
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2021 2020 

Held by trustee under malpractice self-insurance arrangement: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,704,587 13,678,416 
Equity securities: 

Mutual funds 38,253,104 28,789,983 
Fixed income securities: 

Corporate bonds 11,844,204 8,047,254 
Government obligations 13,299,537 9,497,842 
Municipal bonds 13,630,628 10,038,637 

Total held by trustee under malpractice 
self-insurance arrangement 91,732,060 70,052,132 

Held by trustee under bond indentures: 
Cash and cash equivalents 46,927,608 227 
Government obligations 409,116,638 

Assets limited to use 1,604,632,617 942,285,083 

Less amount included in current assets {27,505,124} {4, 665, 065} 

Assets limited to use, less current portion $ 1,577,127,493 937,620,018 

Short-term investments, stated at fair value, consisted of cash, cash equivalents, corporate bonds and 
government obligations as of September 30, 2021 and 2020: 

2021 2020 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Corporate bonds 
Government obligations 

$ 2,297,861 
13,130,948 
34,931,335 

5,175,408 

$ ==5;,;;0~, 3;,;;6=0~, 1=4=4= 5,175,408 
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Investment income and gains and losses on assets limited as to use, cash equivalents and other 
investments comprise the following for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020: 

2021 2020 

Other revenue: 
Interest income $ 1,448,108 1,066,854 
Net realized gains on sale of investments 165,228 230,844 
Unrealized gains (losses) on trading investments, net 5,801,082 2,539,532 

Total 7,414,418 3,837,230 

Nonoperating gains: 
Interest income and dividends 24,402,281 15,953,120 
Net realized gains on sale of investments 10,991,018 7,856,525 
Unrealized gains on trading investments, net 56,632,186 41,197,505 

Total 92,025,485 65,007,150 

Total investment return $ 99,439,903 68,844,380 

(6) Fair Value Measurements 

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the 
measurement date. FASB ASC Topic 820 requires investments to be grouped into three categories based 
on certain criteria as noted below: 

• Level 1 : Fair value is determined by using quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets. 

• Level 2: Fair value is determined by using other than quoted prices that are observable or corroborated 
for the asset by other independently verifiable market data (e.g., quoted prices for identical assets in 
inactive markets, quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, observable inputs other than 
quoted prices, and inputs derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 
correlation or other means). 

• Level 3: Fair value is determined by using inputs based on management assumptions that are not 
directly observable. 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for significant assets measured at fair value 
at September 30, 2021 and 2020: 

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets 
approximate the fair value because of the short maturities of these instruments. 

Investments: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual 
securities are traded or valued based on quoted prices for similar assets. 
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Estimates of fair values are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant 
judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could affect the 
estimates. 

The following tables summarize the fair values of the Center's significant financial assets and liabilities as 
of September 30, 2021 and 2020: 

Fair value measurement at 
September 30, re~orting date 

2021 Level 1 Level 2 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 235,018,216 235,018,216 
Short-term investments: 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,297,861 2,297,861 
Corporate Bonds 13,130,948 13,130,948 
Government obligations 34,931,335 34,931,335 

Assets limited to use: 
Cash and cash equivalents 122,340,721 122,340,720 
Equity securities: 

Domestic stocks 54,806,491 54,806,491 
Global stocks 58,149,637 58,149,637 
Mutual funds 38,253,104 38,253,104 

Fixed income securities: 
Govemment obligations 738,749,067 738,749,067 
Corporate bonds 265,872,914 265,872,915 
Municipal bonds 13,630,628 13,630,628 

Equity index fund 288,246,658 288,246,658 
Beneficial interest in Tampa General Hospital 

Foundation 24,583,397 24,583,397 

Total assets limited to use 1,604,632,617 1,012,299,019 592,333,598 

Total $ 1,890,010,977 1,297,677,379 592,333,598 
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Fair value measurement at 
September 30, reporting date 

2020 Level 1 Level 2 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 311,842,636 311,842,636 
Short-term investments: 

Cash and cash equivalents 5,175,408 5,175,408 

Assets limited to use: 
Cash and cash equivalents 47,756,207 47,756,207 
Equity securities: 

Domestic stocks 132,925,571 132,925,571 
Global stocks 48,014,642 48,014,642 
Mutual funds 28,789,983 28,789,983 

Fixed income securities: 
Government obligations 263,042,843 263,042,843 
Corporate bonds 255,583,145 255,583,145 
Municipal bonds 10,038,637 10,038,637 

Equity index fund 136,997,729 136,997,729 
Beneficial interest in Tampa General Hospital 

Foundation 19,136,326 19,136,326 

Total assets limited to use 942,285,083 520,529,246 421,755,837 

Total $ 1,259,303,127 837,547,290 421,755,837 

(7) Debt 

On July 31, 2020, the Center entered into a credit agreement for a line of credit with a bank. The Center 
has $70,000,000 available under the line of credit. As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, $0 of the available 
line of credit had been drawn. Interest on the line of credit is based on UBOR daily floating rate plus a 
spread, which was 0.58% and 1.61% as of September 30,2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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The Center's long-term debt consists of the following: 

2021 2020 

Series 2012A Bonds, net of unamortized premium of 
$4,383,866 and $7,329,548 as of September 30, 2021 
and 2020, maturing in various amounts 
through October 1, 2043, with stated rates of 3% to 5% $ 98,263,866 159,914,548 

2013 Bank Loan, maturing in various amounts through 
October 1, 2024 at a stated interest rate of 2.47% 13,184,000 17,480,000 

2015 Bank Loan, maturing in various amounts through 
October 1, 2041 at a stated interest rate of 2.52% 171,690,700 174,089,100 

Series 2020A Bonds, net of unamortized premium of 
$17,387,451 as of September 30,2021, maturing in 
various amounts through August 1, 2055, with stated 
rates of 3.5% to 5% 455,667,451 

Series 2020B Bonds, maturing in various amounts through 
August 1, 2040, with stated rates of2.01% to 4.27% 100,785,000 

Series 2020C Bonds, maturing in various amounts through 
October 1, 2034, with stated rates of 3.6% to 4% 55,560,000 

Total long-term debt 895,151,017 351,483,648 

Less current installments (8,824,781) (8,534,246) 
Less debt issuance costs {6,347,612} {2,080,971} 

Long-term debt, excluding current installments $ 879,978,624 340,868,431 

On February 28,2013, the Hillsborough County Industrial Development Authority (IDA) issued 
$166,490,000 aggregate principle amounts of tax-exempt Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds (2012A 
Bonds). A portion of the proceeds of the 2012A Bonds was used to purchase and redeem all of the 
Hospital's outstanding 2003B Bonds and a portion of the Hospital's outstanding Series 2003A Bonds. The 
remaining proceeds of the 2012A Bonds were utilized for the expansion, improvement and further 
equipping of the healthcare facilities. The 2012A Bonds contain various covenants, including, but not 
limited to, the maintenance of a minimum debt service coverage ratio and provides that certain funds be 
established with a trustee bank. 

On September 19, 2013, the IDA, the Center, and PNC Bank NA entered into a Loan Agreement (2013 
Bank Loan) in the amount of $37,020,000 to provide for the refunding of the remaining outstanding 
principal of the Series 2003A Bonds. The 2013 Bank Loan contains various covenants, including, but not 
limited to, the maintenance of a minimum debt service coverage ratio. 

On December 11, 2015, the IDA, the Center, and TO Bank NA entered into a Loan Agreement (2015 
Bank Loan) in the amount of $183,387,500. To provide for the refunding of a portion of the outstanding 
principal of the Series 2006 Bonds. The 2015 Bank Loan contains various covenants, including but not 
limited to, the maintenance of a minimum debt service coverage ratio. 
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On October 29, 2020, the IDA issued $438,280,000 aggregate principle amounts of tax-exempt Hospital 
Revenue Bonds (2020A Bonds), $100,785,000 aggregate principle amounts of taxable Hospital Revenue 
Bonds (2020B Bonds), $55,560,000 aggregate principle amounts of tax-exempt Hospital Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (2020C Bonds). The proceeds of the 2020A Bonds and 2020B Bonds are to be utilized 
for the expansion, improvement, and further equipping of the healthcare facilities. The proceeds of the 
2020C Bonds were used to purchase and redeem some of the Hospital's outstanding series 2012A Bonds 
including $425,000 in unamortized bond issued costs. The bonds contain various covenants, including, but 
not limited to, the maintenance of a minimum debt service coverage ratio and provides that certain funds 
be established with a trustee bank. 

The 2012A Bonds are secured solely by a pledge of assets and a security interest in the revenue of the 
Center. Such pledge and security interest have been assigned to a bank trustee. Stated interest rates on 
the 2012A Bonds range from % to % with an effective rate of 2.97% at September 30,2021 and maturities 
through October 1, 2043. Except for $21,180,000 of serial bonds maturing prior to October 1, 2028, the 
2012A Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption by the Center beginning October 1, 2028 at par plus 
accrued interest. Stated interest rates on the 2013 Bank Loan are set at 2.57% with an effective rate of 
2.71 % at September 30, 2021, and maturities to October 1, 2024. Stated interest rates on the 2015 Bank 
Loan are set at 2.52% with an effective rate of 2.56% at September 30, 2021 and maturities to October 1, 
2041. 

The 2020 Series Bonds are secured solely by a pledge of assets and a security interest in the revenue of 
the Center. Such pledge and security interest have been assigned to a bank trustee. Stated interest rates 
on the 2020A Bonds range from 3.5% to 5% with an effective rate of 3.48% at September 30, 2021 and 
maturities through August 1,2055. Stated interest rates on the 2020B Bonds range from 2.01% to 4.27% 
with an effective rate of 2.42% at September 30, 2021, and maturities to August 1, 2040. Stated interest 
rates on the 2020C Bonds range from 3.6% to 4% with an effective rate of 3.04% at September 30, 2021, 
and maturities to October 1, 2034. 

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of September 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Year ending September 30: 
2022 $ 8,111,600 
2023 8,235,800 
2024 8,151,300 
2025 11,557,600 
2026 12,724,400 
Thereafter 824,599,000 

Long-term debt, excluding 
unamortized premiums 873,379,700 

Unamortized premium 21,771,317 

Long-term debt, including 
unamortized premiums $ 895,151,017 

.li 
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(8) Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following as of September 30, 2021 and 2020: 

2021 2020 

Land $ 59,067,103 59,067,102 
Land improvements, buildings, and fixed equipment 619,429,754 599,597,096 
Major moveable equipment 559,159,741 515,238,279 
Leasehold improvements 22,854,591 19,839,405 
Finance leases 5,176,171 6,962,217 
Vehicles 9,341,446 1,813,174 

Total property and equipment 1,275,028,806 1,202,517,273 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization {758,696,794} {695,281,411} 

Total property and equipment less depreciation 
and amortization 516,332,012 507,235,862 

Construction in progress 66,208,738 28,865,488 

Property and equipment, net $ 582,540,750 536,101,350 

Depreciation expense amounted to approximately $64,742,000 and $64,790,000 during the years ending 
September 30,2021 and 2020, respectively. Approximately $564,000 and $3,796,000 of assets were 
removed from the consolidated balance sheets in 2021 and 2020, respectively, as these assets were no 
longer utilized by the Center. 

As of September 30, 2021, the estimated cost to complete construction in progress is approximately 
$49,572,000. 

Capitalized interest expense was $1,131,000 and $0 during the years ended September 30, 2021 and 
2020, respectively. 

(9) Lease Obligations 

The Center is obligated under a lease for medical office space that expires in 11 years with five renewal 
options for 12 years each. As of September 30,2020, the lease was classified as a capital lease. In 
January 2020, the lease was modified and, as a result of the remeasurement, was reclassified as an 
operating lease. Accordingly, $14,547,365 ($17,813,100 asset net of $3,265,735 of accumulated 
amortization) was reclassed to right-of use asset - operating in the consolidated balance sheet in 2020. 

The tables below present various components of lease activity by the Center as of and for the year ended 
September 30,2021, as a lessee and a lessor. 
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As lessee, the components of lease cost for the year ending September 30, 2021 and 2020 were as 
follows: 

Lease t~pe Classification 2021 2020 

Operating lease costs - fixed Other expense $ 17,527,273 16,191,227 
Financing lease interest Interest expense 84,767 360,080 
Financing lease amortization Depreciation and amortization 654,018 865,434 
Variable lease costs Other expense 2,558,145 1,846,607 
Short term lease costs Other expense 3,512,127 3,402,829 

Total lease costs $ 24,336,330 22,666,177 

Maturities of lease obligations under noncancelable leases as of September 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Year ending September 30: 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
Thereafter 

$ 

Operating Finance 
leases leases 

15,357,097 986,162 
9,819,427 403,631 

.6,507,139 376,441 
3,831,890 364,427 
4,174,825 371,439 

20,553,558 1,556,915 

60,243,936 4,059,015 

(3,509,314) {265,588} 

56,734,622 3,793,427 

Total undiscounted lease payments 

Less imputed interest 

Total lease liabilities $========= 

As of September 30, 2021, the Center has not identified any leases that have not yet commenced that 
create significant rights and obligations. 
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Other information related to leases as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021 is as follows: 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurements of lease liabilities: 

Operating cash flows from operating leases 
Operating cash flows from finance leases 
Financing cash flows from finance leases 

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new or modified leases obligations: 
Operating Leases 
Finance Leases 

Right-of-use assets whose title transferred and moved to fixed assets: 
Finance Leases 

Weighted average remaining lease term (in years): 
Operating leases 
Finance leases 

Weighted average discount rate: 
Operating leases 
Finance leases 

$ 16,819,963 
84,767 

2,033,187 

$ 20,134,663 
1,393,943 

$ 1,861,798 

7 years 
8 years 

1.3 % 
1.7 % 

As lessor, undiscounted cash flows for future minimum lease payments to be received for operating leases 
in effect as of September 30, 2021 are as follows: 

2022 $ 3,129,631 
2023 2,396,279 
2024 1,645,734 
2025 1,427,198 
2026 1,322,104 
Thereafter 31,071,163 

Total future minimum lease 
payments receivable $ 40,992,109 

The Center recognized lease revenue of approximately $1,889,189 and $3,033,000 during the years ended 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, primarily for subleased facilities. This revenue is reflected 
within other revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 
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(10) Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits 

(a) 403b Savings Plan 

Effective January 1, 2014, the Center's board of trustees approved an amendment and restatement of 
its 403(b) Savings Plan document to include a matching contribution equal to the sum of 100% of the 
first 3% of compensation deferred and 50% of the next 2% of compensation deferred. Effective 
January 1, 2018, the Center's board of directors approved an amendment to include an employer 
contribution to the plan equal to half of 1 % of participant's compensation as well as the ability to make 
a discretionary employer contribution each year. The original effective date of this plan was 
December 1, 1999. The Plan was established for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their 
beneficiaries. All employees are automatically enrolled upon hire for purposes of the elective deferral, 
unless they opt not to participate. Participants are eligible to receive a matching contribution upon 
completion of certain service requirements. Contribution expense attributable to this defined 
contribution plan was approximately $19,356,639 and $17,695,000 for the years ended September 30, 
2021 and 2020, respectively, and is included in salaries and benefits on the consolidated statements of 
operations and changes in net assets. 

(b) Other Postretirement Benefits 

The Center sponsors a defined benefit postretirement plan, which is intended to provide medical 
benefits to retirees who were hired prior to January 1, 2001 and had completed 30 or more years of 
service or who attained age 62 and completed five years of service. In addition, the plan provides 
benefits to retirees who had completed 20 or more years of service prior to January 1, 1997. The 
postretirement plan is contributory, with retiree contributions adjusted annually based on the projected 
average plan cost of the Center's self-insured health benefit program for the year. The Center accrues 
the cost of providing postretirement benefits during the active service period of the employee. 

The components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the years ended September 30, 2021 
and 2020 are as follows: 

2021 2020 

Service cost - benefits attributed to service during the year $ 60,342 
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 79,313 
Amortization of net (gain) (299,577) 

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost $ (159,922) =========== 

61,241 
91,044 

(396,951) 

(244,666) 
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The following table sets forth the postretirement plan's funded status and amounts recognized in other 
liabilities in the Center's consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 
(measurement date as of September 30): 

2021 2020 

Change in accumulated benefit obligation: 
Accumulated benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,884,009 3,047,383 
Service cost 60,342 61,241 
Interest cost 79,313 91,044 
Retiree contributions 281,552 345,560 
Actuarial (gain) (26,189) (299,080) 
Benefits paid {257,411) {362,139) 

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year 3,021,616 2,884,009 

Change in plan assets: 
Employer contribution (24,141 ) 16,579 
Retiree contribution 281,552 345,560 
Benefits paid {257,411) {362,139) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Funded status and accrued benefit costs $ p,021,616) {2,884,009) 

For measurement purposes, for pre-Medicare benefits, a 6.25% and 6.50% annual rate of increase in 
the per capita cost of covered healthcare benefits was assumed for 2021 and 2020, respectively. For 
post-Medicare benefits, a 6.50% and 7.00% annual rate of increase in the per capita costs was 
assumed for the same period. These rates were assumed to decrease gradually over the next 
five years and to remain at 4.5% thereafter. 

The weighted average discount rate used in determining the accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation was 2.70% and 2.65% as of September 30,2021 and 2020, respectively. The weighted 
average discount rate used in determining the net benefit cost was 2.65% and 3.56% as of 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

The impact of a one percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates as of 
September 30,2021 is as follows: 

Effect on total of service and interest cost components 
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 

One One 
percentage percentage 

increase decrease 

$ 17,721 (14,625) 
365,062 (302,503) 
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The following are deferred pension costs that have not yet been recognized in periodic pension 
expense but instead are accrued in net assets without donor restrictions as of September 30, 2021. 
Unrecognized actuarial gains and losses represent unexpected changes in the projected benefit 
obligation and plan assets over time, primarily due to changes in assumed discount rates and 
investment experience. Deferred pension costs are amortized into annual pension expense over the 
average remaining assumed service period for active employees. 

Net actuarial gain recognized in net assets without donor restrictions as of 
September 30, 2021 

Net actuarial gain to be recognized during the next year 
$ (2,068,080) 

(289,021 ) 

(c) Cash Flows 

The Center expects to contribute approximately $192,000 to its postretirement benefit plan in fiscal 
year 2022. 

The benefits expected to be paid in each year from 2022 through 2026 are approximately $192,000; 
$221,000; $234,000; $230,000; and $239,000, respectively. The aggregate benefits expected to be 
paid in the five years from 2027 through 2031 are $1,013,000. The expected benefits are based on the 
same assumptions used to measure the Center's benefit obligations as of September 30, 2021 and 
include estimated future employee service. 

The Center established the Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. Retirement Plan (the Pian), which 
became effective January 1, 1998. The Plan is a noncontributory, single employer, cash balance 
defined benefit pension plan. 

On August 28, 2018, the Board approved an amendment to terminate the Plan, effective December 31, 
2018. As a result of the termination, the Center recorded a deferred credit of $1,300,000 to adjust the 
previously estimated settlement charge of $1 ,000,000 during the year ended September 30, 2018. The 
credit was released during 2019. For the year ended September 30, 2020, a final settlement credit of 
approximately $6,279,0000 was recognized 

(11) Commitments and Contingencies 
(a) Litigation 

During the normal course of business, the Center is involved in litigation with respect to professional 
liability claims and other matters. In addition, the Center is subject to periodic regulatory investigations. 
The Center has purchased insurance coverage to minimize its exposure to such risk. This coverage 
includes property, directors and officers, vehicles, medical malpractice, and general liability. Each 
policy has its own deductible and/or self-insurance retention. Based on current information, 
management believes at this time that the results of the litigation and inquiries are not likely to have a 
material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position and results of the Center. 
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(b) Professional Liability 

The Center insures its professional and general liability on a claims-made basis through a commercial 
insurance carrier. The Center has secured claims-made coverage continuously from October 1, 1997 
through September 30, 2021. The Center has renewed its claims-made policy. 

For claims prior to October 1, 1997, the Authority, as an agency or subdivision of the state of Florida, 
had sovereign immunity in tort actions. Therefore, in accordance with Chapter 768.28, the Center's 
legal liability was limited by statute to $100,000 per claimant and $200,000 for all claimants per 
occurrence. Self-insurance retention limits from October 1, 1997 to September 30, 2010 range from 
$1,000,000 to $5,000,000. On May 21, 2010, the Captive was incorporated to provide excess 
professional liability and general liability coverage to the Center on a claims-made basis. The Captive's 
liability under this policy is limited to $85,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. 

The Center has employed independent actuaries to assist management in estimating the ultimate 
costs, if any, of the settlement of known claims and incidents, as well as unreported incidents that may 
be asserted, arising from services rendered to patients. Reported amounts for professional liability 
were approximately $92,649,000 and $85,811,000 as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, 
and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities on the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. The Center records the professional liability based on the actuarially 
determined expected level. Given the maturity of the plan, the Center believes the expected level is a 
better estimate of the ultimate outcome than other confidence levels. The expected level is a commonly 
followed industry practice. 

(c) Third Party Reimbursement 

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to 
interpretation. The Center is aware of these laws and regulations and, in situations where there is a 
possible violation or instance of noncompliance, has recorded an estimate of the impact of the possible 
violation or instance of noncompliance. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to 
future government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, 
penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result, there is a possibility 
that recorded estimates will change. 

(d) Novel Corona virus (COVID-19) 

The current COVID-19 pandemic has had numerous and varied medical, economic, and social 
impacts, any and all of which have and may again adversely affect the Center's business and financial 
results. In March 2020, the Florida Governor issued an executive order prohibiting certain medically 
unnecessary, non-urgent or nonemergent procedures and surgeries as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic. The restrictions were lifted in May 2020, however there is a possibility that additional 
restrictions on elective procedures may be reintroduced to the extent that COVID-19 patients threaten 
system capacity. Disruptions could also include temporary closures of the Center's facilities or the 
facilities of suppliers and their contract manufacturers, and a reduction in the business hours of the 
Center. The effects of COVID-19 could further and severely affect the Center's ability to conduct 
normal business operations and, as a result, the future operating results of the Center could be 
materially adversely affected. 
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In March 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) was signed into 
law providing among other provisions, financial relief to hospitals and healthcare providers during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. The CARES Act Provider Relief Fund provides funding from the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services (HHS) to support healthcare-related expenses or lost revenue 
attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

As of September 30,2021 and 2020, the Center received approximately $48,791,000 and 
$35,413,000, respectively, in Provider Relief Funding related to the CARES Act. The funds received 
under the CARES Act Provider Relief fund represent payments that do not need to be repaid as long 
as the Center complies with certain terms and conditions imposed by HHS, including reporting and 
compliance requirement. Such payments are accounted for as government grants and are recognized 
as other income once there is reasonable assurance that the applicable terms and conditions required 
to retain the funds will be met. As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Center has recognized 
approximately $21,197,000 and $27,594,000 within other revenue on the consolidated statements of 
operations and changes in net assets. The remaining balance, if any, is recorded within total current 
liabilities under accounts payable and accrued expenses in the consolidated balance sheets. The 
remaining balance to recognize was $0 and $7,819,000 of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

During April 2020, the Center applied for and received approximately $131,034,000 from the Medicare 
Advance Payment Program provided under the CARES Act. The amount is separately identified as 
deferred revenue within total current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Based on the 
Continuing Appropriations Act, 2021 and Other Extensions Act released in October, repayment will 
begin one year after the receipt of the advance payments. The claims for services provided to Medicare 
beneficiaries will be applied against the advance payment balance. Any unapplied advance payment 
amounts must be paid in full within 29 months of receipt. The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
Services (CMS) began recoupment of advances in April 2021. As of September 30, 2021, payments of 
approximately $37,530,000 have been recouped by CMS. 

The CARES Act also permits employers to defer the payment of the employer's portion of social 
security taxes incurred between March 27, 2020 and December 31, 2020, with half of the deferred 
payments required to be paid by December 31, 2021 and the other half to be paid by December 31, 
2022. As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Center has deferred payroll tax payments of 
approximately $21,030,013 and $13,658,000 which are included within other liabilities on the 
consolidated balance sheets. 

(12) Other Funding Sources 

The Hospital receives funding from various components of the state of Florida's (the State) Medicaid 
program, including Medicaid Disproportionate Share Payments (DSH), Low Income Pool program (LIP) and 
Medicaid prospective payment rates. The State's DSH program distributes funding to the Hospital in 
recognition of the disproportionate level of care provided to indigent patients and to defray some of the 
costs associated with graduate medical education. The LIP is a federal matching program that provides 
states with the opportunity to receive additional distributions based upon the cost of charity care provided 
Medicaid fee for service is paid based on inpatient APR-DRG and outpatient paid based on outpatient 
EAPG. 
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The total funding amounts from the DSH and trauma programs was approximately $5,819,666 and 
$6,486,000 during the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are reported as 
disproportionate share distributions in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets. Since July 1, 2001, the Hospital has received trauma funding of approximately 
$3,500,000 per year from Hillsborough County to supplement the Hospital's reimbursement for trauma 
services rendered to Hillsborough County residents. 

Under the terms of an agreement with the Hillsborough County Health Plan, the Hospital is paid for 
authorized services provided to eligible recipients based on contracted rates. The contract renews on an 
annual basis and is currently through June 30, 2021. These payments are subject to certain limits (network 
caps) for each network per contract, including amounts the Hospital must reimburse physicians. For the 
year ended September 30,2021 and 2020, approximately $32,775,000 and $28,976,000, respectively, 
were included in net patient services revenue. 

(13) Joint Ventures 
In 2018, the Center purchased a noncontrolling 50% interest in Tower Imaging, LLC (Tower). Tower 
operates radiology imaging centers across the region. 

During 2019, the Center executed an agreement with Synergic Healthcare Solutions, LLC d/b/a Fast Track 
Urgent Care Center ("Fast Track") to acquire 50% of the membership interest in the urgent care medical 
practices owned and operated by Fast Track. 

The Center's distributive share of operating gains of approximately $2,219,000 and $1,302,000 has been 
included in nonoperating gains in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets for 
the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

(14) Affiliated Organizations 
The Foundation was established to solicit contributions from the general public on behalf of the Hospital for 
the funding of capital acquisitions and to support Hospital programs. As of September 30, 2021, and 2020, 
the Foundation held assets for the Hospital that were restricted by donors. The Hospital's interest in the net 
assets of the Foundation is included in assets limited as to use and amounted to approximately 
$24,583,000 and $19,136,000 as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

The University of South Florida Board of Trustees (the University) has an affiliation agreement with the 
Center. The affiliation agreement establishes the Center as the primary teaching hospital for the University 
in order to provide healthcare education and training for students, residents, and other healthcare 
professionals. In accordance with the affiliation agreement, the University assigns physicians and residents 
to provide the customary services of the Center. For the years ended September 30,2021 and 2020, the 
Center paid the University approximately $93,197,000 and $80,141,000, respectively, for these services, 
which also include the residents' salaries and the related malpractice coverage and medical director fees. 
These amounts are recorded within salaries and benefits and other expenses in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 
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(15) Functional Expenses 

The Center's expenses are primarily related to providing healthcare services to the community. The 
functional breakdown of expenses incurred by the Center for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 
2020 are as follows: 

Total operating expenses 

Se~tember 30, 2021 
Program Supporting 
activities activities 

Healthcare General and 
services administrative Total 

$ 617,751,811 154,183,139 771,934,950 
455,390,558 455,390,558 
127,515,004 108,931,377 236,446,381 
103,845,524 98,651,371 202,496,895 
43,735,451 21,748,385 65,483,836 
28,388,243 28,388,243 

$ 1,376,626,591 383,514,272 1,760,140,863 

Se~tember 30, 2020 
Program Supporting 
activities activities 

Healthcare General and 
services administrative Total 

$ 547,382,453 156,650,136 704,032,589 
353,440,617 353,440,617 
120,364,057 103,601,750 223,965,807 

84,995,018 87,886,585 172,881,603 
43,166,931 22,976,791 66,143,722 
11,760,463 11,760,463 

$ 1,161,109,539 371,115,262 1,532,224,801 

Salaries and benefits 
Medical supplies 
Other 
Purchased services 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest 

Salaries and benefits 
Medical supplies 
Other 
Purchased services 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest 

Total operating expenses 

31 (Continued) 



FLORIDA HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

September 30,2021 and 2020 

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more 
than one program or supporting function of the Center. General and administrative expenses are those 
supporting activities that are not directly identifiable with one or more program activity. The Center reviews 
all departments and generally allocates each department to either program services or general and 
administrative based on departmental function. For depreciation and amortization expenses, the majority is 
assigned at the department level, however the asset ledger was also reviewed for program service 
administrative departments to reassign from general and administrative to health care services. 

(16) Liquidity and Availability 

The Center has financial assets that could be available within one year of the balance sheet date to meet 
cash needs for general expenditures. These financial assets consist of cash, accounts receivable, 
short-term investments, and assets whose use is limited. While certain assets are classified as non-current, 
these assets are considered unrestricted and the Center has the ability to utilize them to meet any current 
needs that may arise. None of the financial assets quantified in the table below are subject to donor or 
other contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditures within one year of the 
balance sheet date. The accounts receivable are expected to be collected within one year. The Center 
structures its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations 
come due. 

2021 2020 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 235,018,216 311,842,636 
Patient accounts receivable 237,898,962 180,846,775 
Short-term investments 50,360,144 5,175,408 
Assets whose use is limited: 

Board designated funds 1,032,272,914 853,096,398 

Total $ 1,555,550,236 1,350,961,217 

(17) Subsequent Events 

The Center has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through December 16, 2021 
the date the consolidated financial statements were issued, and has determined that no additional 
disclosures or adjustments are required. 
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General 
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Chief Financial Officer's Certificate 

THE UNDERSIGNED, Mark Runyon, EVP & CFO of Florida Health Sciences Center, 
Inc., a Florida not for profit corporation, hereby certifies to Hillsborough County Hospital 
Authority that, to the best of my knowledge, Lessee has met its obligations under the 
Lease Agreement with respect to the provision of services, care and facilities to persons 
who are unable to pay. This certification is being given pursuant to Section 9.1 of the 
Lease Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate on behalf of 
Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. as of this 21st day of January 2022. 

Mark Runyon 
EVP& CFO 
Florida Health Sciences Center d/b/a 
Tampa General Hospital 

P.O. Box 1289 • Tampa, Florida 33601-1289 • (813) 844-7000 • www.tgh.org 
Primary teaching hospital for the USF Health Morsani College of Medicine 
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Report on 2021 Audit of Financial Statements

• Unmodified opinion

• No disagreements with management

Responsibilities under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS)

• Audits performed in accordance with GAAS

• Objective is reasonable - not absolute - assurance that the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement

Responsibilities under Government Auditing Standards

• Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants

Internal Accounting Controls

• Reviewed controls to the extent necessary to render an opinion on the 
financial statements

• No material weaknesses noted

Management Cooperation

• Received full cooperation

• Full access to books and records

3

2021 AUDIT RESULTS 

1



4

OTHER MATTERS

2

The Auditing Standards Board of the AICPA requires that we

communicate certain matters to the Finance Committee or

Board of Trustees. These requirements, as established in

Statement of Auditing Standards, are presented below:

• Illegal Acts

None noted for 2021

• Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit

None noted for 2021

• Significant Changes in Accounting Policies

None noted for 2021

• Uncorrected Misstatements
(Passed Adjusting Journal Entries)

None for 2021

• Other matters



201 North Franklin Street
Suite 2600, Tampa, Florida 33602
813-875-7774  www.rgcocpa.com

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

5

3

2021 2020 2019

ASSETS
Checking account 30,300$     28,000$     18,500$     
Money market account 165,200     137,000     216,300     
Other 1,400        1,400        1,400        

Total current assets 196,900     166,400     236,200     

LIABILITIES 300           300           300           

NET POSITION, UNRESTRICTED 196,600$   166,100$   235,900$   



201 North Franklin Street
Suite 2600, Tampa, Florida 33602
813-875-7774  www.rgcocpa.com

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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4

2021 2020 2019

Operating revenues
Administrative fee 75,000$    75,000$    75,000$     
Escrow reimbursement 40,000      40,000     40,000       
Other income 2,000        -              -                

Total operating revenue 117,000    115,000    115,000     

Operating expenses
Contract labor 35,000      35,000     35,000       
Legal 40,000      40,000     40,000       
Grants/gift -               98,000     10,000       
Other 11,600      11,900     11,500       

86,600      184,900    96,500       

30,400      (69,900)    18,500       

Non-operating revenues
Investment income 100           100          200           

Change in net position 30,500$    (69,800)$  18,700$     

Operating income (loss)



201 North Franklin Street
Suite 2600, Tampa, Florida 33602
813-875-7774  www.rgcocpa.com

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

7

5

2021 2020 2019

SunTrust Escrow Account 249,000$   260,900$   261,500$   
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1. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
Hillsborough County Hospital Authority 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Hillsborough County Hospital 
Authority (the Authority) as of and for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions
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2. 
 

Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the Authority as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 and the 
respective changes in net position, and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3-5 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report date February 
28, 2022. on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 

Tampa, Florida 
February 28, 2022 
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HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 
(Continued) 

 
3. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
This annual financial report consists of two parts:  management’s discussion and analysis and the 
basic financial statements.  The basic financial statements also include notes that explain in more 
detail some of the information in the basic financial statements.   
 

This section of Hillsborough County Hospital Authority’s (the Authority) annual financial report 
presents management’s analysis of the Authority’s financial performance during the fiscal years 
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the basic financial 
statements, which follow this section. 
 

Required Financial Statements 
 

The basic financial statements of the Authority report information about the Authority using 
accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies. The statement of net 
position includes all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the 
nature and relevance of investments in resources (assets) and obligations to Authority creditors.  
It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Authority and assessing the 
liquidity and financial flexibility of the Authority. All of the audited years’ revenues and expenses 
are accounted for in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.  This 
statement measures the success of the Authority’s operations over the past years and can be used 
to determine whether the Authority has successfully recovered all its costs through its activities, 
as well as its profitability and credit worthiness.  The final required financial statement is the 
statement of cash flows.  The primary purpose of this statement is to provide information about 
the Authority’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period.  The statement 
reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operating, investing, 
and capital and related financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where did 
cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in the cash balance during the 
reporting period. 
 

Financial Analysis of the Authority 
 

Our analysis of the Authority begins with the statement of net position.  One of the most 
important questions asked about the Authority’s finances is, “is the Authority as a whole better 
off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  The statement of net position and the 
statement of revenues, expenses and change in net position report information about the 
Authority’s activities in a way that will help answer this question.  These two statements report 
the net position of the Authority and the changes in net assets.  You can think of the Authority’s 
net position – the difference between assets and liabilities – as one way to measure financial health 
or financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the Authority’s net position is an 
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  However, you will need 
to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions. 
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HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 
(Continued) 

 
4. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
To begin our analysis, a summary of the Authority’s net position: 
 

FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $      195,434  $    165,093  $     234,799 
Other              1,425            1,390             1,390 
    Total assets          196,859        166,483         236,189 

Liabilities                 250               260                270 

Net position, unrestricted           $      196,609  $    166,223  $     235,919 
 

 
In fiscal year 2021 there was a increase in total assets, specifically due to a increase in cash related 
to an decrease in gift related expenses in the current year.  
 

FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019
Operating revenues
Administrative fee  $        75,000  $      75,000  $       75,000 
Escrow reimbursement            40,000          40,000           40,000 
Other              1,908                 10                  10 
Total operating revenues          116,908        115,010         115,010 

Operating expenses
   Contract labor            35,000          35,000           35,000 
   Legal            40,000          40,000           40,000 

   Grants/gift                    -            98,000           10,000 

   Other            11,560          11,754           11,485 
           86,560        184,754           96,485 

Operating (loss) income 30,348           (69,744)       18,525          

Non-operating revenues
    Investment income                   38                 48                194 

Change in net position            30,386        (69,696)           18,719 

Net position at beginning of year          166,223        235,919         217,200 

Net position at end of year  $      196,609  $    166,223  $     235,919 
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HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 
(Continued) 

 
 

5. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
The Authority leases to the Center the land and buildings on the Davis Island campus (Tampa 
General Hospital), together with all improvements located thereon for a nominal annual rental 
amount of $10. The contract with the Center also allows for reimbursement of legal expenses 
incurred by the Authority in connection with the contract with the Center.  The legal 
reimbursements fluctuate from year to year depending on the legal activity required, but the 
administrative fee of $75,000 remains constant over the length of the contract.   
 
Normally, the Authority’s largest annual expense is contract labor for legal services which has 
remained stable for the last several years. Insurance is an expense that generally increases 
annually for the Authority due to market insurance premiums increasing steadily during the past 
few years, however, insurance expense has remained stable for the last few years. Additionally, 
the Authority was awarded no health care related gifts during the year ended September 30, 2021. 
Two health care related gifts for a total of $98,000 was awarded during the year ended September 
30, 2020. 
 
The Authority also has non-operating revenue from its money market account.  The interest 
income from the money market account has reflected market trends and low interest rates. 
 
Fiscal 2022 Outlook 
 
There will be no anticipated changes in operating revenues and expenses from 2021 to 2022.   
 
Request for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Hillsborough County 
Hospital Authority’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to Madeleine Courtney, 
Chairman, Hillsborough County Hospital Authority. 
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6. 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
September 30, 

 
 

2021 2020
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2 and note 3) 195,434$             165,093$             
Prepaid expenses 1,425                   1,390                   

      Total assets 196,859               166,483               

LIABILITIES
Deferred rental income 250                      260                      

      Total liabilities 250                      260                      

NET POSITION, UNRESTRICTED

         RESTRICTIONS 196,609$             166,223$             
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HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

 
7. 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITON 
Year ended September 30, 

 
 

2021 2020
Operating revenues

Administrative fee 75,000$               75,000$               
Escrow reimbursements (note 3) 40,000                 40,000                 
Rent 10                        10                        
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,898                   -                       

    Total operating revenues 116,908      115,010      
   

Operating expenses
Contract labor 35,000                 35,000                 
Legal fees (note 3) 40,000                 40,000                 
Professional fees 8,000                   8,000                   
Grants/gift -                       98,000                 
Insurance 3,385                   3,337                   
Other 175                      417                      

    Total operating expenses 86,560                 184,754               

Operating (loss) income 30,348                 (69,744)                

Non-operating revenues

Interest income 38                        48                        

    Total non-operating revenues 38                        48                        

Change in net position 30,386                 (69,696)                

Net position at beginning of year 166,223               235,919               

Net position at end of year 196,609$             166,223$             
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8. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30, 

 
 

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash receipts 116,898$             115,000$             
Cash paid for operating goods and services (51,595)                (149,754)              
Cash paid for contract labor (35,000)                (35,000)                

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 30,303                 (69,754)                

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and dividends received 38                        48                        

Net cash provided by investing activities 38                        48                        

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 30,341                 (69,706)                

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 165,093               234,799               

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 195,434$             165,093$             

Reconciliation of operating net income to
net cash provided from operating activities

Operating income (loss) 30,348$               (69,744)$              
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 

net cash used in operating activities:
Increase in prepaid expenses (35)                       -                           

Decrease in deferred rental income (10)                       (10)                       

30,303$               (69,754)$               
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HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 and 2020 
 
 
 

 
 

9. 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of Organization:  The Hillsborough County Hospital Authority (the Authority) is a 
governmental entity established by the State of Florida (Laws of Florida Chapter 80-510 
superseded by Laws of Florida Chapter 96-449) to meet the healthcare needs of the citizens of 
Hillsborough County and the State of Florida. 
 
Business Transfer:  On October 1, 1997, the Authority transferred control of operations and 
substantially all assets and liabilities to Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. (the Center), a not-
for-profit entity incorporated in 1997 to meet the healthcare needs of the citizens of Hillsborough 
County and the State of Florida.  The transferred assets included, among other things, University 
Psychiatry Center, and Tampa General Health Plan, Inc., an unconsolidated affiliate.  It also 
brought about the liquidation of Tampa General Staffing, Inc. (Staffing) on January 1, 1998. 
 
The change in control, transfer of assets, and assumption of liabilities was accomplished through 
the execution of an agreement between the Authority and the Center as well as changes granted 
by the Florida Legislature that provides for the privatization of Tampa General Hospital.  For 
financial statement purposes, the change in control was accounted for as a residual equity transfer 
with substantially all assets being transferred and all liabilities assumed. 
 
In connection with the change in control, the Authority entered into a 49-year lease agreement 
which can be extended for an additional 49 years with the Center.  According to the terms of the 
lease agreement, the Authority transferred all rights, title, and interest in the transferred assets 
and assumed liabilities.  The Authority leases to the Center the land and buildings on the Davis 
Island campus (Tampa General Hospital), together with all improvements located thereon for a 
nominal annual rental amount of $10.  Upon termination of the lease, the Davis Island campus 
reverts back to the Authority.  The lease also provides for an annual $75,000 administration 
payment from the Center to the Authority to defray its administrative costs and expenses and a 
performance facility (Escrow Agreement) to be used solely for the purpose of paying reasonable 
attorneys fees and expenses incurred by the Authority in connection with the enforcement of the 
Center’s compliance with provisions of the lease agreement. 
 
The Authority is responsible for monitoring the Center’s compliance with provisions of the lease 
agreement to ensure the healthcare needs of the citizens of Hillsborough County and the State of 
Florida are met.  The lease provides for both early termination and events of default and remedies. 
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HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

 
 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
10. 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Accounting Policy:  The accounting policies of the Authority conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units.  The 
summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the 
financial statements and other data in this report.  These policies, as presented, should be viewed 
as an integral part of the accompanying financial statements. 
 

The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund.  An enterprise fund is used to account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, 
where the stated intent is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through 
user charges. 
 

There are no component units of the Authority. 
 

Basis of Accounting:  The Authority accounts for its activities through use of an enterprise fund. 
Enterprise funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, 
where the determination of a change in financial position is necessary or useful for sound 
financial administration (business-type activities). Since the Authority only has business-type 
activities, it is considered a special-purpose government for financial reporting under 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 34 Basis Financial Statements – and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for the State and Local Governments (GASB 34). Accordingly, 
the Authority only presents fund financial statements as defined by GASB 34. The Financial 
Statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses when incurred.  
 

Basis of Presentation:  The Authority has elected not to apply the FASB Statements and 
Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989; however, the Authority continues to follow GASB 
Statements and Interpretations. 
 

Budgetary Controls:  The Authority prepares an annual flexible budget and compares budget to 
actual results on a monthly and annual basis in accordance with prudent business practices.  The 
budget is a non-appropriated budget, and therefore, the Authority does not have any excess 
expenditures that are contrary to law. 
 

Management Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:  The Authority considers all unrestricted, highly liquid investments 
with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
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HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 and 2020 
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11. 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):  The Authority classifies revenues and expenses which are 
directly related to the healthcare needs of the citizens of Hillsborough County and the State of 
Florida as operating.  All other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating, including 
dividend and interest income. 
 
Restricted Funds:  When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources when they are 
needed. 
 
NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
As of September 30, 2021, and 2020, the aggregate carrying amount of the Authority’s cash 
deposits equaled the Authority’s aggregate bank balance less outstanding checks, all of which 
was covered by federal depository insurance. 
 
Custodial Credit Risks - Deposits:  Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, 
the Authority’s deposits may not be returned to it. 
 
The State of Florida requires that deposits by governmental units in a financial institution be 
collateralized.  The State of Florida maintains control over the collateral requirements and 
authorizes certain financial institutions to act as depositories for governmental units.  The 
Authority maintains all accounts in financial institutions approved by the State of Florida. 
 
The Authority’s policy is to control and diversify investment risk by limiting specific security 
types and/or concentrations with individual financial institutions.  Specific investment strategies 
are influenced by relative market yields and the cash needs of the Authority.  Excess funds may 
be invested in: 

 
 Local government investment pool; 
 Money market funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission; 
 Interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories; and 
 Direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury. 

 
Amounts invested in a money market fund totaled $165,125 and $136,839 for the years ended 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  These amounts are included in cash and cash 
equivalents in the accompanying statement of net assets. 
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HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 and 2020 
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12. 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 
 
Interest Rate Risk:  As a means of limiting its exposure to fair market value losses arising from 
interest rates, the Authority’s investment policy is structured to provide sufficient liquidity to 
pay obligations as they come due.  The Authority’s entire investment portfolio has maturities of 
less than one year. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risks:  The Authority maintains all of its cash accounts in one financial 
institution, approved by the State of Florida, in bank deposit accounts, which at times, may exceed 
federally insured limits.  All balances are collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
financial institution but not in the name of the Authority.  The Authority has not experienced any 
losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risks on its cash 
balance. 
 
NOTE 3 - ESCROW AGREEMENT 
 
As part of the lease agreement between the Authority and the Center, an escrow agreement was 
entered into for the limited purpose of providing funding for the payment of the Authority’s legal 
expenses and any costs of investigation or other expenditures necessary to enforce the terms of 
the lease.  The Center deposited $250,000 in an interest-bearing account with an escrow agent.  
The Authority has not recorded this asset on the accompanying financial statements.  The funds 
are disbursed upon proper certification from the Authority   that the requested payments qualify 
as reimbursable expenses.  If the account balance falls below $150,000, the Center will deposit 
sufficient funds to bring the balance up to $250,000. The Center’s maximum obligation under the 
escrow agreement is $1,000,000 for the term of the lease.  The amount expensed from escrow for 
the Authority’s legal expenses since October 1, 1997 totaled $760,210 and $720,210 at         
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  The balance in the escrow account was $249,254 and 
$260,906 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  Reimbursements totaling $40,000 were 
paid to the Authority during the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020. 
 
NOTE 4 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The Authority has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to September 30, 2021 
as of February 28, 2022 which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE AND  

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

 GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
Hillsborough County Hospital Authority 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
Hillsborough County Hospital Authority (the “Authority”) as of and for the year ended       
September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 
2022. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

DRAFT 2.8.22



 

15. 
 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 

 
Tampa, Florida 
February 28, 2022 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER BASED ON RULE 10.554(1)(i) OF 
THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

 
 

Board of Trustees 
Hillsborough County Hospital Authority 
 

 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Hillsborough County Hospital Authority (the 
“Authority”), Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, and have issued our 
report thereon dated February 28, 2022. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Other Reporting Requirements 
 
We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards; and Accountants’ Report on an examination 
conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding 
compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. 
Disclosures in those reports, which are dated February 28, 2022, should be considered in 
conjunction with this management letter. 
 
Prior Audit Findings 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not 
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the 
preceding annual financial audit report. There were no prior year findings nor corrective actions 
disclosed in the preceding audit report. 
 
Official Title and Legal Authority 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be 
disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The 
required information is disclosed in the Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements (see Note 
1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies).
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Financial Condition and Management 
 
Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply 
appropriate procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether or not the 
Authority has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, 
and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined 
that the Authority did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida 
Statutes. 
 
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied 
financial condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the 
Authority’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on 
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.
  
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management 
letter any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we 
did not have any such recommendations. 
 
Special District Component Units 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.d, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not 
a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, provided 
the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit, within the 
audited financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with 
Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we determined that all special 
district component units provided the necessary information for proper reporting in accordance 
with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. The Authority did not include any additional special 
district component units for the year ended September 30, 2021, as this is not applicable. 
 
Additional Matters 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have 
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which 
warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did 
not have any such findings.  
 
Purpose of this Letter 
 
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida 
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, Board of Trustees, and applicable 
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties.  

 
 
 

Tampa, Florida 
February 28, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 

THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON  
COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF  
SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Hillsborough County Hospital Authority 
 
We have examined Hillsborough County Hospital Authority‘s investment policy compliance 
with the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes during the year ended September 30, 
2021. Management is responsible for Hillsborough County Hospital Authority’s compliance with 
those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Hillsborough County Hospital 
Authority’s compliance based on our examination. 
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about Hillsborough County Hospital Authority’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
examination does not provide a legal determination on Hillsborough County Hospital 
Authority’s compliance with specified requirements. 
 
In our opinion, Hillsborough County Hospital Authority complied in all material respects, with 
the aforementioned requirements for the year ended September 30, 2021. 

 
 
 

Tampa, Florida 
February 28, 2022 
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To the Board of Trustees 
Hillsborough County Hospital Authority 

We have audited the financial statements of the Hillsborough County Hospital Authority, Inc., for 
the year ended September 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 
2022. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. 
We have communicated such information to you in our audit engagement letter. Professional 
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our 
audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by the Hillsborough County Hospital Authority are described 
in Note 1 to the financial statements. The application of existing policies was not changed during 
the year ended September 30, 2021.  We noted no transactions entered into by the 
Hillsborough County Hospital Authority during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that 
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The Hillsborough 
County Hospital Authority has no significant estimates included in their financial statements. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. No significant disclosures were included in the financial statements 
for the years ended September 30, 2021. The financial statement disclosures are neutral, 
consistent and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management.  Management had no misstatements.  
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Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated February 28, 2022.  

Management Consultations with Other Independent Auditors 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the organization’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to management discussion and analysis, which is 
required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquires of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express and opinion or 
provide any assurance on the RSI. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for information and use of the Board of Trustees and 
management of the Hillsborough County Hospital Authority and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Tampa, Florida 
February 28, 2022 
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HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
QUARTERLY BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

November 15, 2021 – 9:00 A.M. 
HYBRID MEETING 

ROBERT W. SAUNDERS, SR. PUBLIC LIBRARY 
1505 N. NEBRASKA AVENUE, TAMPA, FL 33602 

 
 
BOARD MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE  
Madeleine Courtney, Chair 
Eddie Adams, Jr., Vice Chair  
J. Patrick Baskette, Treasurer 
Lisa Decossas, Secretary 
Commissioner Ken Hagan 
Commissioner Kimberly Overman  
Bryce Bowden 
Manoucheca Chantigny  
Lesa Alkire-Doyle 
Robert Gonzalez 
Senator John Grant 
James Martin, Jr. 
Jerome Ryans  
Ronrico Smith 
Jay Wolfson, Ph.D. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS UNABLE TO ATTEND 
None. 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
Tamara Rice, Tampa General Hospital (TGH) 
Felix Bratslavsky, TGH 
Kim Christine, TGH 
Jennie Tarr, HCHA Legal Counsel 
Charlene Williams, HCHA Administrator 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:06 a.m. by Chair Courtney.  Ms. Williams called the roll and noted 
a physical quorum of eight members of the Hillsborough County Hospital Authority (HCHA) was present, 
with the remaining members and guests appearing virtually.   
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REPORT FROM LEGAL COUNSEL - TAMPA GENERAL HOSPITAL REZONING APPLICATION 

 
Attorney Tarr referred to a request from TGH for Chair Courtney to sign a rezoning application affidavit 

for the Bayshore Pavilion vertical expansion project and introduced Ms. Tamara Rice, Director, TGH 

Design & Planning, who presented the project.  Dr. Wolfson noted the HCHA had historically been 

involved in financing/bond issuance for TGH projects and asked if any bonds would be issued and if the 

HCHA would have to issue or underwrite those bonds.   Ms. Rice advised that bonds had already been 

issued and received by TGH.  Dr. Wolfson asked who the bond holder was and sought clarification about 

whether or not the HCHA needed to be involved in the bond issuance.  Treasurer Baskette inquired how 

the expansion would be paid for, and Ms. Rice stated that $550 million in bonds had been issued for the 

TGH Master plan, which included funds to complete the Bayshore Pavilion expansion project.  Noting 

the HCHA was the landlord for the property, Dr. Wolfson did not want to vote on the matter until the 

questions asked by HCHA members had been answered regarding the bond funding.   

  

Treasurer Baskette moved to table consideration of the TGH proposal until the HCHA had clarity on how 

it was being paid for, seconded by Dr. Wolfson.  The motion was not voted on.    

 

Upon noting the requests for information made by Dr. Wolfson and Treasurer Baskette, Attorney Tarr 

suggested the HCHA defer the item until the end of the agenda so that TGH representatives could have 

the opportunity to provide the information prior to the end of the meeting.  Mr. Ryans so moved, 

seconded by Mr. Bowden.  The motion carried 14-1.   (Treasurer Baskette voted no.) 

 

Commissioner Overman proposed having TGH bond counsel provide additional details to the HCHA 

regarding whether or not the HCHA was listed as a guarantor for the bonds.   

 

Treasurer Baskette moved to table consideration of the TGH proposal until the HCHA had clarity on 

how the project was being paid for.  The motion was seconded by Dr. Wolfson and  carried 

unanimously.      

 

Following a discussion on the difference between the motions for deferring and tabling the item, 

Attorney Tarr clarified that the HCHA would give TGH until the end of the meeting to determine whether 

they could provide the information request by the HCHA.  Dr. Wolfson and Treasurer Baskette concurred.  

Attorney Tarr sought clarification from TGH about any time constraints related to filing the rezoning 

application affidavit.   

 

After conferring with Mr. Steve Short from TGH, Ms. Rice advised that TGH received a $550 million bond 

through the Hillsborough County Industrial Development Authority; noted the bonds were issued to 

TGH, with no obligation/liability to the County; and that additional information could be provided by 

Attorney Tom Morrison, IDA Legal Counsel.  Noting the HCHA and Hillsborough County were two 

separate entities, Attorney Tarr sought clarification that Ms. Rice’s reference to the County was actually 
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a reference to the HCHA.  Ms. Rise confirmed the reference was to the HCHA.  Attorney Tarr requested 

that Mr. Short and Attorney Morrison confirm the previous statements in writing.   

 

Responding to Senator Grant, Ms. Rice stated the bonds were not secured by an interest in the real 

estate.  Treasurer Baskette preferred the HCHA have written confirmation regarding the bonds and 

HCHA liability before moving forward.  Senator Grant expressed concerns about the HCHA taking 

responsibility for expansion of the property, how the bonds were secured, how the bonds would be 

repaid, and requested a presentation by legal representatives from TGH before voting on the item.  

Commissioner Overman recommended the IDA’s financial advisor who issued the bonds provide 

clarification/documentation regarding any liability for HCHA. 

 

Treasurer Baskette suggested that a special meeting of the HCHA would need to be called with the 

backup documentation in writing and with TGH staff present to review the matter.   Dr. Wolfson pointed 

out that the HCHA had limited power related to indigent care and minority business oversight under the 

terms of the lease but noted the HCHA was previously used as the bonding entity for TGH projects and 

had statutory obligations related to bonding.   Replying to Vice Chair Adams, Ms. Rice confirmed that 

construction materials for the project would be delivered as needed, with additional materials stored 

offsite.   

 

Attorney Tarr reiterated the HCHA wished to allow TGH time to provide written documentation to 

answer HCHA member concerns, sought clarification about when the TGH rezoning application would 

need to be filed, and noted that the HCHA agreed to a special meeting once the requested materials had 

been compiled.   

 

Senator Grant wished to understand why the HCHA was not consulted prior to the bond application and 

sought a historical narrative about the course of events leading up to TGH’s request for the rezoning 

application to be signed by the HCHA.  Commissioner Overman stated that the IDA addressed the TGH 

bond issuance on January 7, 2021 and mentioned that as a County Commissioner she had been 

previously briefed on the bond issuance.   Mr. Adams and Mr. Ryans believed the HCHA should have had 

an advance briefing by TGH regarding the bonds.  Dr. Wolfson referred to the HCHA’s legal obligation as 

property owner and suggested the non-notification by TGH was an oversight and that the issue could be 

resolved with a special meeting. 

 

Attorney Tarr sought confirmation from Ms. Rice that TGH understood the HCHA’s request for 

documentation at the special meeting based on the questions raised by HCHA members.   Commissioner 

Overman reviewed the timeline and actions related to this project and asked Ms. Rice when the rezoning 

hearing was scheduled.  Ms. Rice believed the hearing was set for March 2022. 

 

Following a suggestion from Attorney Tarr, Treasurer Baskette moved the HCHA convene a special 

meeting of the HCHA once there was clarity and documentation available to the HCHA.   The motion 

was seconded by Mr. Bowden and carried unanimously.   
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APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion to approve the August 23, 2021 Quarterly HCHA Board meeting minutes was made by 
Commissioner Overman and seconded by Mr. Martin.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
REPORT FROM THE CHAIR 
 

A. Recap of Annual Landlord Briefing 
 

Chair Courtney reviewed the recap of the Annual Landlord’s Briefing, which was conducted virtually on 
October 11, 2021.  Responding to Treasurer Baskette’s inquiry about ownership of the property at 606 
W. Kennedy Boulevard, Attorney Tarr would verify if the property was owned/overseen by the HCHA or 
by TGH.   
 

B. Follow-Up Discussion - TGH Community Funding & Corporate Wellness Presentation on 
August 23, 2021 

 
At the request of Chair Courtney, Attorney Tarr provided a brief overview of the TGH presentation, 

reviewed past HCHA discussion on community gifts/grants, and sought direction from the HCHA.  

Commissioner Overman inquired about current HCHA cash on hand and requested clarification about 

TGH’s request.  Treasurer Baskette reviewed the FY 2021 Treasurer’s Report and noted the HCHA 

currently had $65,124.58 on hand for gifting.  Vice Chair Adams described previous HCHA community 

grants via a request for proposal (RFP) process and financial gifts to TGH.   

 

Mr. Bowden moved that the HCHA Grant Committee review the funding opportunities from TGH and 

bring back those suggestions to the HCHA.  The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Adams.  Following 

discussion about the HCHA Grant Committee membership, the motion carried unanimously. 

 

Treasurer Baskette moved that the HCHA create a new Grant Committee to review the options.  The 

motion was seconded by Vice Chair Adams and carried unanimously.   

 
Vice Chair Adams wanted the HCHA to also pursue community projects in addition to the TGH projects.  

Following conversation about participation on the Grant Committee, Chair Courtney noted the original 

Grant Committee members were Vice Chair Adams, Bryce Bowden, Secretary Decossas, Lesa Alkire-

Doyle, Robert Gonzalez, and James Martin.  

 

Attorney Tarr reviewed the Grant Committee purpose and history, which at one time had included an 

RFP process; noted that the RFP process requirements, when compared to the dollar amounts of HCHA 

grants offered, was a deterrent for grant recipients/applicants; and pointed out that, if the HCHA chose 

to conduct an RFP grant process, funding for an outside entity would be required due to the increased 

administrative resources involved.   
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Commissioner Overman moved that the HCHA grant/community funding committee bring back a 

recommendation to the February 28, 2022 HCHA meeting for any of the projects submitted by TGH, 

included in the meeting backup and other TGH projects as well, with funding amounts noted.  The 

motion was seconded by Treasurer Baskette.   

 
Vice Chair Adams wanted the Grant Committee to look at streamlining the RFP process and preferred to 
offer a community grant in addition to a TGH gift.  Responding to Treasurer Baskette, Commissioner 
Overman restated her motion to have the Grant Committee consider the TGH community funding 
request and bring back a recommendation at the February 28, 2022 HCHA meeting for the programs 
to be considered and the dollar amount to approve.  The motion was seconded by Treasurer Baskette 
and carried unanimously.  
 

Attorney Tarr mentioned the HCHA had previously requested that TGH prepare a list of unfunded 

projects and TGH-sponsored community outreach programs to provide a simpler process for the HCHA 

to offer resources to the community thereby avoiding the RFP process.  Mr. Ryans wanted the HCHA to 

streamline the RFP process.   Mr. Baskette noted that the Grant Committee had been directed to review 

the TGH request first and come back to the HCHA with a recommendation.  Ms. Williams will schedule 

the Grant Committee meeting. 

 
REPORT FROM THE TREASURER 
 
Treasurer Baskette presented the FY 2021 Fourth Quarter Treasurer’s Report and noted the remaining 
FY 2021 funds of $30,308.60 would be transferred from the Seacoast Checking Account into the Seacoast 
Money Market account in the first quarter of FY 2022.   
 
Treasurer Baskette reviewed the FY 2021 year-end report and noted that, after accounting for the 

$100,000 reserve recommended by the auditor, there was a balance of $65,124.58 available for gifting.   

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Overman to accept the FY 2021 Fourth Quarter and FY 2021 
Year-End Treasurer’s Reports.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Martin and carried unanimously.   
 
REPORT FROM THE ADMINISTRATOR 
 

A. The Fourth Quarter 2021 MBE Spend Report was presented by Ms. Williams, who stated the 
Construction goal is 16.9%, and the MBE percentage for the fourth quarter was 10.2%.  The 
Professional Services goal is 11.8%, and the fourth quarter MBE percentage was 26.4%.  The 
General Goods and Services goal is 6%, and the fourth quarter MBE percentage was 29.5%.  The 
Medical Supplies and Services goal is 3%, and the fourth quarter MBE percentage was 4.7%.    

 

Responding to Commissioner Overman’s question regarding the fourth quarter construction MBE 
percentage of 10.2%, Mr. Felix Bratslavsky, TGH Manager MBE & Government Relations, advised that 
TGH believed the drop in the construction goal could be attributed to projects being in the beginning 
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construction phases and noted that MBE reporting was tied to when actual payments were made and 
TGH expected the MBE percentage to increase. 
 

A. The Fourth Quarter 2021 Indigent Care Report was given by Ms. Williams, who indicated indigent 
patient utilization was 42.96%; total hospital discharges were 14,746; indigent care patient 
average length of stay was 5.36 days; and overall hospital average length of stay was 5.96 days.  
The case mix index was as follows:  Medicaid, 1.65; HCHCP, 1.50; Charity, 1.90; with hospital case 
mix index at 1.94.   

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Overman to accept the Fourth Quarter 2021 MBE Spend Report 
and the Fourth Quarter 2021 Indigent Care Report.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Bowden and 
carried unanimously.   
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 
NEXT BOARD MEETING DATE – February 28, 2022 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Treasurer Baskette.  The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Adams 
and carried unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 10:45 a.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
____________________________ 
Lisa Decossas  
Secretary, HCHA 



 
 

Report from  
Legal Counsel 

 
a. Director’s and Officer’s Insurance Renewal  
b. Status Update – Grants/Community Funding 

Subcommittee Meeting  
 

 













 
 

Report from 
the Treasurer 

 
A. First Quarter FY 22 Treasurer’s Report  

 
 
 



Seacoast Checking Account

FOURTH QUARTER CLOSING BALANCE as of 9/30/21 $30,308.60

INCOME Annual Budget First Qtr Actual
FHSC Administrative Payment 75,000                                               75,000.00                 
Bank Accounts Interest 8                                                        2.52                          
Miscellaneous -                            

Total 75,008                                               75,002.52                 

EXPENSES First Qtr Expenses
Administrative Services 35,000                                               -                            
Healthcare Grant -                                                    -                            
Office Supplies 100                                                    -                            
Directors & Officers Insurance 4,000                                                 -                            
Independent Auditing 8,280                                                 -                            
Special District Fee 175                                                    175.00                      
Healthcare Grant Advert
Transfer to Money Market 28,419                                               30,308.60                 (1)
Miscellaneous 100                                                    

Total 76,074                                                    30,483.60                 
FIRST QUARTER CLOSING BALANCE as of 12/31/21 $74,827.52

Bank Statement Closing Balance- 12/31/21 75,002.52            
Outstanding Checks (175.00)               

Reconciled balance 74,827.52            

(1)  Transfer FY2021 year-end balance to 
money market account 

Hillsborough County Hospital Authority
Treasurer's Report 

For the First Quarter of Fiscal 2022
October, November, December 2021

Respectfully submitted by:

Patrick Baskette
Treasurer, Board of Trustees 



Seacoast Money Market Account

FOURTH QUARTER CLOSING BALANCE as of 9/30/21 $165,124.58

INCOME Annual Budget First Qtr Actual
FHSC Administrative Payment
Bank Accounts Interest 40                                                      8.36                          
Transfer from Checking 28,419                                               30,308.60                 (1)

Total 28,459                                               30,316.96                 

EXPENSES First Qtr Expenses
Administrative Services -                                                    -                            
Healthcare Grant -                                                    
Office Supplies -                                                    
Directors & Officers Insurance -                                                    
Independent Auditing -                                                    
Special District Fee -                                                    
Healthcare Grant Advert -                                                    
Miscellaneous -                                                    

Total -                                                         -                            
FIRST QUARTER CLOSING BALANCE as of 12/31/21 $195,441.54

Bank Statement Closing Balance- 12/31/21 $195,441.54
Less reserve (100,000.00)         
Less State Unclaimed Funds (1,898.01)             
Available Money Market Funds 93,543.53            

Total Cash on hand 12/31/2021 MM & Checking 270,269.06          

(1)  Transfer from Checking account  FY2021 

Hillsborough County Hospital Authority
Treasurer's Report 

For the First Quarter of Fiscal 2022
October, November, December 2021

Respectfully submitted by:

Patrick Baskette
Treasurer, Board of Trustees 



 
 
 

Report from the 
Administrator 

 
a. First Quarter 2022 MBE Spend Report 
b. First Quarter 2022 Indigent Care 

Report 

 
 

 



2ndQ '20 3rdQ '20 4thQ '20 1stQ '21 2ndQ '21 3rdQ '21 4th Q '21 1st Q '22

Construction - GOAL 16.9%

MBE Category Total $476,611.08 $939,400.43 $2,235,935.78 $1,168,337.46 $1,726,277.99 $2,926,690.29 $2,028,343.67 $1,577,744.87

Category Total $3,119,450.38 $5,478,109.82 $5,462,730.57 $10,138,006.67 $9,983,192.41 $12,327,372.39 $19,948,872.40 $11,785,218.41

MBE Percentage 15.3% 17.1% 40.9% 11.5% 17.3% 23.7% 10.2% 13.4%

Prof. Services - GOAL 11.8%

MBE Category Total $3,029,045.18 $1,746,253.14 $1,938,624.75 $1,903,081.66 $3,000,943.81 $3,032,411.46 $3,453,078.83 $4,497,438.91

Category Total $5,392,633.49 $4,579,635.67 $4,244,891.24 $6,925,775.72 $6,409,522.08 $8,939,930.17 $13,063,577.63 $19,977,556.81

MBE Percentage 56.2% 38.1% 45.7% 27.5% 46.8% 33.9% 26.4% 22.5%

Gen Goods & Svs - GOAL 6%

MBE Category Total $1,918,580.44 $1,853,257.79 $1,830,179.04 $2,313,404.88 $2,029,303.47 $2,124,252.73 $2,285,545.20 $2,157,319.37

Category Total $6,256,772.57 $4,986,481.87 $5,774,037.18 $6,876,345.40 $5,894,193.79 $5,737,281.89 $7,759,595.72 $6,191,774.42

MBE Percentage 30.7% 37.2% 31.7% 33.6% 34.4% 37.0% 29.5% 34.8%

Med Supp & Svs. GOAL 3%

MBE Category Total $521,977.68 $1,170,296.32 $952,205.29 $718,316.57 $499,241.70 $925,977.07 $867,081.74 $608,128.08

Category Total $14,967,160.96 $17,179,407.33 $19,937,069.34 $19,418,966.34 $20,520,836.59 $21,657,923.71 $18,582,173.91 $20,521,983.45

MBE Percentage 3.5% 6.8% 4.8% 3.7% 2.4% 4.3% 4.7% 3.0%

 MBE Spend Report 
1st Quarter Data

Rolling Eight Quarters Comparison



Designation Construction Professional 
Services

General Goods 
& Services

Medical Supplies 
& Services

Designation 
Total

African-American 69,190.00$                                -$                     -$                     224,265.50$        293,456$           
Hispanic-American 25,334.00$                                $242,017.01 90,874.40$          122,290.29$        480,516$           
Women-Owned 1,046,589.87$                           4,219,620.65$     1,275,481.53$     89,836.39$          6,631,528$        
Other (Asian, Native Amer) -$                                           35,801.25$          508,811.86$        -$                     544,613$           

Tier 1 Subtotal 1,141,113.87$                           4,497,438.91$     1,875,167.79$     436,392.18$        7,950,113$        

African-American 3,197.70$                                  -$                     79,494.52$          9,248.30$            91,941$             
Hispanic-American 319,506.88$                              -$                     4,357.00$            11,726.71$          335,591$           
Women-Owned 110,781.42$                              -$                     101,643.72$        98,492.46$          310,918$           
Other (Asian, Native Amer) 3,145.00$                                  -$                     96,656.34$          52,268.43$          152,070$           

Tier 2 Subtotal 436,631.00$                              -$                     282,151.58$        171,735.90$        890,518$           
Minority Category Total 1,577,744.87$                           4,497,438.91$     2,157,319.37$     608,128.08$        8,840,631$        

Category Total 11,785,218.41$                          19,977,556.81$    6,191,774.42$     20,521,983.45$    58,476,533$      
MBE Percentage 13.4% 22.5% 34.8% 3.0%

YEAR TO DATE
Minority Category Total 1,577,744.87$                           4,497,438.91$     2,157,319.37$     608,128.08$        8,840,631$        

Category Total 11,785,218.41$                          19,977,556.81$    6,191,774.42$     20,521,983.45$    58,476,533$      
MBE Percentage 13.4% 22.5% 34.8% 3.0%

Availability 16.9% 11.8% 6% 3%
(as defined by the minority business and utilization study)

African-American -$                     10,000.00$          -$                     10,000$             
Hispanic-American -$                                           -$                     -$                     226.80$               226.80
Women-Owned -$                                           1,625,258.00$     -$                     -$                     1,625,258$        
Other (Asian, Native Amer) -$                                           -$                     -$                     -$                   

Identified Subtotal -$                                           1,625,258.00$     10,000.00$          226.80$               1,635,485$        
MBE Outreach

10/7/2021 Minority Business Accelerator Advisory Council Meeting Member

10/15/2021 NAACP Freedom Fund Dinner Sponsor

11/3/2021 Tampa Bay Economic Development Council Annual Meeting Attendee

11/17/2021 Minority Business Accelerator Cohort Graduation Attendee
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Tampa General Hospital
Minority Business Enterprise

Fiscal Year 2022 Participation Report
First Quarter (October - December)



1st Q '20 2nd Q '20 3rd Q '20 4th Q '20 1st Q '21 2nd Q '21 3rd Q '21 4th Q '21 1st Q '22

Indigent Patient Utilization 35.55% 36.35% 35.13% 48.31% 33.09% 36.70% 36.50% 42.96% 34.88%

 

Total Hospital Discharges 13,438 13,197 11,213 12,980 13,238 13,033 13,782 14,746 14,025

 

Indigent Care Patient ALOS 5.17 5.18 5.32 5.43 5.71 5.63 5.53 5.36 5.75

 

Hospital ALOS 5.57 5.58 5.43 5.71 5.73 5.88 5.89 5.96 6.00

 

Case Mix Index (CMI)  

Medicaid 1.43 1.53 1.61 1.68 1.68 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.63

HCHCP 1.34 1.58 1.62 1.71 1.45 1.49 1.44 1.50 1.47

Charity 1.54 1.66 1.78 1.73 1.68 1.69 1.84 1.90 1.81

Hospital CMI 1.77 1.77 1.85 1.94 1.93 1.94 1.97 1.94 1.94

Quarterly Indigent Care Comparison 
1st Quarter Data

Rolling Nine Quarters



TGH Tampa 
General 
Hospital. 

February 14, 2022 

Ms. Madeleine Courtney, Chairman 
Hillsborough County Hospital Authority (HCHA) 
P.O. Box 1289 Tampa, FL 33601 

Dear Ms. Courtney: 

Enclosed is the quarterly indigent care report (report) for the first quarter ended December 31, 2021 as required by 
Section 10.1 of the Lease Agreement. 

The left half of the report presents annual information for each fiscal year 2019 through 2022 and the right half presents 
our fiscal first quarter (October through December) information for each fiscal year 2019 through 2022. In this report, 
the information contained therein follows the intent set forth by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) for Form 990, 
Schedule H - Hospitals, Part 1- Charity Care and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost. For consistency, we have 
compiled out report based on costs, as defined by IRS guidelines. The report totals will also be included in the 
disclosures required by the footnotes to our audited financial statements, in addition to our annual report regarding our 
community benefit activities. 

Total Indigent Care unreimbursed costs have continued to increase in the first quarter as evidence by the year over year 
trends. Overall indigent costs increased 9.8% as compared to 2021. Medicaid unreimbursed cost increased 9.5% due 
primarily to higher volume offset by an increase in supplemental payments. HCCB unreimbursed cost increased slightly 
by 2.7%. Although volumes were mostly flat, higher expenses and a reduction in payments caused the overall increased 
cost. Charity unreimbursed cost was up 13.8% due to increased volumes and higher acuity patients. 

The cost to provide care to the indigent population also reflects generally higher expenses throughout the nation 
associated with RN labor costs and the associated nurse staffing shortage. Also contributing to increased expenses were 
USF funding, insurance, technology, and renovations needed to build out our infectious disease hospital. While our 
efforts in reducing length of stay have been stymied by an increase in acuity, our continued focus on other efficiencies 
has mitigated some of the cost increase. Although overall inpatient indigent utilization has increased, the increased cost 
has been generally driven by a higher intensity as evidence of a higher case mix of inpatients and a shift towards more 
ambulatory utilization which is generally paid less on a per case basis than inpatient. 

Attached are the definitions of terms used in the report. If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me at 
(813) 844-4647. 

sinc2rey, ~ 
I f' _h jt'l/~ 

Je6he~arris 
Vice President of Payor & Government Affairs 

P.O. Box 1289 • Tampa, Florida 33601-1289. (813) 844-7000. www.tgh.org 
Primary teaching hospital for the USF Health Morsani College of Medicine 



Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc. 

Quarterly Report to HCHA-Lease Section 10.1 Requirement 
For the 12 months ended September 30, 2022 

1. Total Un reimbursed Cost (number in thousands) 

Medicaid Cost 
HCHCP Cost 
Charity Cost 
Total Indigent Cost 

Gross Charges at Cost 

2. Utilization of Major Services by Indigent Patients: 
Discharges (including Newborns) 

Medicaid 
HCHCP 
Charity 
Total Indigent 

Adjusted indigent discharges 

Total Discharges 

Patient days (including Newborns) 

Medicaid 
HCHCP 
Charity 
Total Indigent 

Adjusted indigent panent days 

Hospital Patient Days 

Average length of stay (including Newborn) 
Medicaid 
HCHCP 
Chanty 
Total Indigent 

Hospital ALOS 

Case mix index (including Newborn) 

Medicaid 
HCHCP 
Charity 

Hospital CMI 

Fiscal Year to Date 

YTD 
FYI9 

Asn% 
of Total 

YTD 
FY20 

Asa% 
of Total 

YTD 
FY21 

Asa% 
of Total 

YTD 
FY22 

Asa% 
of Total 

72,096 
19,924 
52,173 

503% 
139% 
364% 

84,309 
21,304 
63,831 

580% 
146% 
439% 

101,725 
24,855 
63,453 

609% 
149% 
380% 

20,675 
4,800 
11,301 

144,193 

1,434,648 

14,376 
975 

3,335 

1005% 

2668% 
181% 
619% 

169,444 

1,454,505 

14,010 
942 

3,846 

l165% 

2756% 
185% 
757% 

190,033 

1,671,033 

15,148 
1,266 
4,123 

1137% 

2764% 
231% 
752% 

36,776 

442,995 

3,812 
217 
863 

2718% 
155% 
615% 

18,686 

28,648 

53,888 

79,068 
4,770 
16,608 

3468% 

2622% 
158% 
551% 

18,798 

27,255 

50,828 

74,146 
4,668 
20,347 

3698% 

2599% 
164% 
713% 

20,537 

29,042 

54,799 

82,775 
6,870 
24,614 

3748% 

2516% 
209% 
748% 

14,025 

22,122 
1,146 
4,876 

4,892 3488% 

7,004 

2621% 
136% 
578% 

100,446 

153,997 

301,545 

3331% 

550 
489 
498 

99,161 

143,773 

285,320 

3475% 

529 
496 
529 

114,259 

161,579 

328,943 

3474% 

546 
543 
597 

28,144 

40,295 

84,404 

3334% 

580 
528 
565 

For the 1st Quarter October 1,2021 through December 31,2021 

IstQtr 
FYI9 

IstQtr 
FY20 

IstQtr 
FY21 

lstQtr 
FY22 

Asa% 
of Total 

Asa% 
of Total 

As a % 

of Total 
Asa% 
of Total 

467% 
108% 
255% 

-80% 15,816 455% 16,358 453% 18,889 475% 20,675 467% 
-81% 4,211 121% 5,060 1 40% 4,672 1 18% 4,800 108% 
-82%~ __ ~13~,2~7~3 ~3~8~2~%~~~I~I~,5~6~7 3~20~o/.~o~ __ ~9,~9~3~1 ~2~50~o/.~o~ __ ~I~I~,3~0~1 2~5.~5o/.~o 

33,300 959% 32,985 914% 33,492 843% 36,776 830% 830% 

347,402 360,978 397.443 442,995 

-75% 3.664 2705% 3,673 2733% 3,378 2552% 3.812 2718% 
-83% 204 151% 237 176% 222 168% 217 155% 
-79% ~8~9~7 ~6~6~2~%~ ~8~6~7 6~45~o/.~o ~7~80~ __ ~5~8~9~o/.~o ~8~6~3 6~15~o/.~o 

4,765 3517% 4,777 3555% 4,380 3309% 4,892 3488% 

7,207 7.450 6,157 7.004 

13,547 14.025 13.438 13,238 

-73% 19,826 2579% 19,207 2616% 19.458 2521% 22,122 2621% 
M83% 1,169 152% 1.059 144% 1.173 152% 1.146 136% 
-80% 4~,6~6~2~ __ ~6~0~6~%~ ~4~,4~4~9 6~06~o/.~o ~4,~3~69~ __ ~5~6~6~o/.~o ~4~,8~7~6 ~5~78~o/.~o 

25,657 3337% 24,715 33.66% 25,000 3239% 28.144 3334% 

38,807 35,142 40,295 38,542 

76,879 73,417 84.404 77,178 

541 
573 
520 

576 
528 
560 

580 
528 
565 

523 
447 
5,13 

538 

558 

141 
1 37 
1 54 

I 74 

528 

553 

I 57 
1 66 
1 66 

1 84 

556 

586 

167 
1 58 
1 82 

1 95 

575 

600 

163 
147 
1 81 

194 

538 5 17 575 571 

563 573 600 557 

141 
146 
1 54 

143 
1 34 
I 54 

1 68 
145 
1 68 

163 
147 
I 81 

177 1 93 194 1 77 



Quarterly Report to neHA - Lease Section 10.1 Requirement 
Definitions of Terms 

Indigent Care Patlcnu Indigent care patients arc individuals with income levels at or 
below the Federal poverty guidelines, who may qualify for assistance under Federal, 
State and local government programs. This population includes those patients funded by 
Medicaid and the Hillsborough County Health Care Plan ("HCBCP"), and those patients 
unable to pay for services and not eligible to receive assistance from any Federal, Stale 01' 
local government program (i.e., Charity Care). 

Total Un-relmburscd Cost Incurred for Indigent Patients: The reported dollar 
amounts are estimated un-reimbursed cost for services rendered according to the 
community benefit definitions found in the IRS Forni 990. For Medicaid and the 
HCBCP, the amounts reflect the excess of costs over each program's reimbursement. 
Charity Care reflects total estimated cost of care for those patients. 

Hospital Gross Charges at Cost: The reported dollar amounts reflect all patient charges 
for services rendered regardless of payer source reduced to cost by applying the 
Hospital's Medicare cost to charge ratio in conformity with the IRS Form 990 guidelines. 

Discharges: The total number of inpatients discharged, died, or transferred from the 
hospital during the reporting period. The number of discharges reported includes 
newborn discharges. 

Patient Days: The number of days care was provided 10 admitted patients during the 
reporting period. The number of patient days reported includes days related to newborn 
care. 

Adjusted Discharges and Patient Days: These benchmarks arc intended to incorporate both 
inpatient and outpatient activity into one statistic, and arc calculated using the ratio of roial 
indigent gross revenue to inpatient indigent gross revenue applied to inpatient indigent discharges 
and patient days. 

Average length of stay (ALOS): A statistical indicator of the average number of days a 
patient stays in bed, calculated by dividing the total patient days by the total number of 
discharges. 

Case Mix Index: A. statistical indicator reflecting the severity of illness in a patient 
population. A case mix index of 1.0 represents "average" severity, whereas case mix 
indices greater than 1.0 indicate a more severely ill population. The case mix index is 
weighted average acuity level for inpatients only and is derived based upon industry 
standards. 
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